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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

Group net income
Group net investment income
Group net insurance premium

Group net benefits and claims

Group operating expenses
Group profit before tax

Group profit after tax

Group total equity and reserves
Group total assets

Number of shares

Earnings per share (GH¢)
Dividend per share (GH¢)
Return on assets (%)

Return on equity (%)

Share price (Market) (GH¢)

Price earnings ratio

2021
1,164,093
245,015
838,697

644,324

246,409
153,070

122 852
834,395
2,163,317
170,892,825
0.396

0.074

6.29

10.49

2.79

7-05

2020
847,747
141,662
651,386
374,630
190,846
175,514
146,729
764,386
1,745,508
170,892,825
0.476

0.062

9.04

13.76

1.40

2.94

2019

714,088
128,008
535,870

325,346

163,798
135,790
117,295
666,895
1,499,116
170,892,825
0.466

0.054

8.23

15.12

1.65

4.00

2018
607,167
114,478

453,430

283,573

147,546
96,639
87,949
576,553
1,349,344
170,892,825
0.303

0.045

7.38

11.15

2.94

7.40

2017
542,651
139,744

380,706

275,699

117,264
90,404
87,045
308,779
1,034,967
133,820,825

0.397

9.43

24.12

3.70

9.32
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of Enterprise Group Plc (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for the preparation of separate and consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view of Enterprise Group Ple, comprising the statements of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in
the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992). In addition, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the report of the directors.

The directors are also responsible for such internal controls as they determine are necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk management. The directors
are satisfied with the adequacy of the internal controls.

The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred

to as “the Group”) to continue as going concern and have no reason to believe that the businesses will not be
going concern in the year ahead.

Principal activities
The Company and its subsidiaries are registered to carry on the business of investments, life and non-life

insurance underwriting, pensions funds management, provision of funeral services and real estate

development and management. There was no change in the nature of business of the Company and its
subsidiaries during the year.

Objectives of the Group

The objective of the Group is as stated in its Mission Statement, namely, to give all who come into contact
with it their desired advantage because they are the best at what they do.

Subsidiaries of the Company

The Company directly or indirectly owns the following subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021:

Company Country of Nature of business

incorporation
Enterprise Life Assurance LTD Ghana Underwriting life insurance policies
Enterprise Insurance LTD Ghana Underwriting non-life insurance
Enterprise Trustees LTD Ghana Pension funds management
Enterprise Properties LTD Ghana Real estate development and management
Enterprise Funeral Services Ghana LTD (Trading
as ‘Transitions — The Funeral People”) Ghana Provision of funeral services
Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Gambia)
Limited The Gambia Underwriting life insurance policies
Seventh Avenue Properties LTD Ghana Real estate development and management
Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Nigeria)
Limited Nigeria Underwriting life insurance policies
Acacia Health Insurance Limited Ghana Underwriting health insurance policies

3
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
Five-year financial highlights
The five-year financial highlight is shown on page 2.

Financial statements

The financial results of the Company and the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020 are set out on page 14 of these financial statements.

The directors recommend payment of a dividend of GH¢ 0.074 (2020: GH¢ 0.062) per share. The directors
consider the state of the Company’s and Group’s affairs to be satisfactory.

Particulars of entries in the Interests Register during the financial year

No director had any interests in the contraets or proposed contracts with the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021, hence there were no entries recorded in the Interests Register as required by section 194 (6),
195 (1) (a) and 196 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

Related party transactions

Information regarding directors’ interests in ordinary shares of the Company is disclosed on page o1 of the
annual report and their remuneration is disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements. No director has any
other interest in any shares or loan stock of any Group company except as stated. Related party transactions
and balances are also disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements.

Corporate social responsibility and code of ethics

A total of GH¢ 2,465,261 and GH¢ 2,116,706 (2020: GH¢ 364,831 and GH¢ 93,400) was spent under the
Group and Company’s social responsibility programme with key focus on education, health, financial
inclusion and others respectively. An extract of the Group Code of Ethics can be found on the Group’s
website www.enterprisegroup.com.gh.

Profile of Board of Directors

Qualification Outside board and management position
Non-executive
Trevor Trefgarne Graduate of Cranfield School | Enterprise Life Assurance LTD; Enterprise Insurance
Member Strategy & Investments, |of Management LTD and Enterprise Properties LTD.
Audit and Joint HR &
Nominations Committees
Attended all 4 Board meetings
Martin Eson-Benjamin B.Sc. Administration, CFAO Litd; Enterprise Insurance LTD and
Member Strategy & Investments | University of Ghana Millennium Development Authority.
Committee
Attended 3 out of 4 Board
meetings
Lead Independent Director
Prof, Angela Ofori-Atta BSc, MA, PhD: Psychology | Databank Financial Services Ltd; Databank Asset
Member Strategy 8 Investments Management Services Ltd; Enterprise Funeral
Committee, Services Ghana LTD and Grace Strategic Ventures
Chair Joint HR & Nominations Ltd.
Committee
Attended 3 out of 4 Board
meetings




ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC

Annual Report

for the vear ended 31 December 2021

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)

George Otoo

Member Strategy & Investments
Committee

Attended 1 out of 2 Board
meetings

MBA Insurance Management
UK, Diploma WAII
Insurance Liberia, Associate
ACII UK

Databank Epack Investment Fund and Ghana
Reinsurance Ple.

Fiifi Kwakye

Member Strategy & Investments
Committee,

Chair Audit Committee
Attended all 4 Board meetings
Independent Non-Executive

B.Sc. Accounting, MSe.
Finance & Accounting, ICA
Ghana, Chartered Institute
of Taxation Ghana, Member
of Institute of Internal

Afina Asset Management Company Ltd; Phlox
Services Litd; Enterprise Trustees LTD and Enterprise
Life Assurance LTD.

Nominations Committees
Attended all 4 Board meetings

(UK)

: Auditors Ghana,
Director
Douglas Lacey B,Com; Master's Degree in Enterprise Insurance LTD; Enterprise Properties
Member Strategy & Investments, |Business Leadership, FCII LTD and Grace Strategic Ventures Ltd.
Audit and Joint HR &

Executive

Keli Gadzekpo

Chair Strategy & Investments
Committee

Attended all 4 Board meetings

B.Sc. Accounting., CPA, MA
Public Admin

Ventures and Acquisitions Ltd, Family Ventures and
Offices Ltd; Databank Asset Management; Ecolodge
Mole Operating Company Limited; Enterprise
Properties LTD; Enterprise Life Assurance LTD;
Enterprise Funeral Services Ghana LTD; Seventh
Avenue Properties Ltd; Enterprise Insurance LTD;
Databank Epack Investment Fund LTD; Databank
Financial Services LTD; Bank of Ghana; Electricity
Company of Ghana Ltd and Grace Strategic Ventures
Ltd: Acacia Health Insurance Limited; Roberts and
Sons Optical Limited and Phyto-Riker (GIHOC)
Pharmaceuticals Limited

Cleland Cofie Bruce Jnr
Member Strategy & Investments
Committee

Attended 1 out of 1 Board meeting

ACII, FIIG, MA (Leading
Change)

Inovare LTD; Acacia Health Insurance Limited.

Daniel Larbi-Tieku
Member Strategy & Investments
Committee

B. Sc. Accounting, FCCA,
MSc Finance

Enterprise Funeral Services Ghana LTD; Prudential
Bank Ghana LTD; Randace Company Lid; Acacia
Health Insurance Limited.

Attended all 4 Board meetings.

Michael Tyson ACMA, CGMA Acacia Health Insurance Limited; Enterprise
Member Strategy & Investments | M.Sc. Strategic Business Trustees LTD.

Committee Management

Attended 3 out of 3 Board

meetings

Trends that may affect future performance

The trends that may affect future performance are covered in the strategy and risk profile of the business.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
Material foreseeable risks

The Group Risk and Compliance Committee ensures that the material risks facing the business are addressed
with adequate mitigation measures.

Biographical information of directors

Age category Number of directors
41 — 60 years 5
Above 60 years 5

Role of the Board

The directors are responsible for the long-term success of the Group, determining its strategic direction and
reviewing operating, financial and risk performance. There is a formal schedule of matters reserved for the
Board of Directors, including approval of the Group’s annual business plan, the Group’s strategy, acquisitions,
disposals and capital expenditure projects above certain thresholds, all guarantees, treasury policies, the
financial statements, the Group’s dividend policy, transactions involving the issue or purchase of Company
shares, borrowing powers, appointments to the Board, alterations to the memorandum and articles of
association, legal actions brought by or against the Group, and the scope of delegations to Board committees,
subsidiary boards and the management committee. Responsibility for the development of policy and strategy
and operational management is delegated to the executive directors and a management committee, which as at
the date of this report includes the executive directors and senior managers.

Internal control systems

The directors have overall responsibility for the Group’s internal control systems and annually reviews their
effectiveness, including a review of financial, operational, compliance and risk management controls. The
implementation and maintenance of the risk management and internal control systems are the responsibility of
the executive directors and other senior management. The systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control systems, including controls related to financial, operational and reputational risks identified by the
Group as at the reporting date and no significant failings or weaknesses were identified during this review.

Directors’ performance evaluation

The performance and effectiveness of the Board of Directors, its Committees and individual directors is
evaluated on a periodic basis. The evaluation is conducted by an external facilitator and the results are shared
with all members of the Board. Overall, it was noted that the Board of Directors and its Committees were
operating in an effective manner and performing satisfactorily, with no major issues identified.

Conflicts of interest

The Group has established appropriate conflicts authorisation procedures, whereby actual or potential conflicts
are regularly reviewed and authorisations sought as appropriate. During the year, no such conflicts arose and no
such authorisations were sought.

Board balance and independence

The composition of the Board of directors and its Committees is regularly reviewed to ensure that the balance
and mix of skills, independence, knowledge and experience is maintained. The Board will continue with ongoing
work regarding its composition in line with the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Corporate Governance
Code for Listed Companies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
Capacity building of directors to discharge their duties

On appointment to the Board, directors are provided with full, formal and tailored programmes of induction, to
enable them gain in-depth knowledge about the Group’s business, the risks and challenges faced, the economic
knowledge and the legal and regulatory environment in which the Group operates. Programmes of strategic and
other reviews, together with the other training programmes provided during the year, ensure that directors
continually update their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group’s businesses. This further provides
insights about the industry and other developments to enable them to effectively fulfil their role on the Board
and Committees of the Board.

Audit fees

The audit fee for the year is GH¢ 925,495 and GH¢ 124,730 (2020: GH¢ 826,000 and GH¢ 109,000) for the
Group and Company respectively.

Auditor

The auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has expressed willingness to continue in office in accordance with section
139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act g92).

Approval of the report of the directors

The report of the directors of Enterprise Group Plc was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022
and signed on their behalf by:

Keli Gadzekpo Fiifi Kwakye
Group Chief Executive Officer Director




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Enterprise Group Plc (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
as at 31 December 2021, and of the financial performance and the cash flows of the Company
standing alone and the Group for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act
992).

What we have audited

We have audited the financial statements of Enterprise Group Plc and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The financial statements comprise:
o the separate and consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

o the separate and consoclidated statements of comprehensive income for the year then
ended:

» the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
s the separate statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;
o the separate and consolidated statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the separate and consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the Code) issued
by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants and the independence
requirements of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) that are relevant to our
audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the Company and the Group's financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Company's financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC (continued)

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Valuation of insurance contract liabilities

The The

Group Company

GH¢'000  GH¢'000

Non-life insurance 34,286 -
contract liabilities

Life insurance 921,023 -

contract liabilities

The estimation of insurance contract liabilities
involves significant degree of judgement due to the
level of subjectivity inherent in the estimation of the
effect of uncertain or unknown future events and
the resulting potential exposure to losses.

The valuation of the incurred but not reported
(IBNR) and the Life Fund is carried out by
independent actuaries engaged by the Group.

For non-life insurance contract liabilities, estimates
have to be made for the expected ultimate cost of
all future payments in respect of incurred claims at
the reporting date. These include IBNR claims. The
gross ultimate paid claims is estimated using the
Chain Ladder, Bornhuetter-Ferguson, Loss Ratio
and Cape Cod estimation technigues. Underlying
these methods are explicit or implicit assumptions
relating to the expected settlement amount and
settlement patterns of claims. The main
assumption is that claims settlement patterns in the
past will remain the same in future.

For life insurance contract liabilities, assumptions
that are considered as most significant in carrying
the actuarial estimation of the insurance contract
liabilities include mortality and morbidity, valuation
interest rate, update take-up rate, lapse rate,
renewal expenses, investment return rate and
expense inflation rate.

The estimation of insurance contract liabilities is
therefore considered as a key audit matter for the
Group based on the level of complexity and
significant management judgement involved.

Notes 3.1 and 5.1 set out the critical estimates and
judgement exercised in calculating insurance
contract liabilities. Outstanding claims and related
IBNR are disclosed in note 20 while the actuarial
liabilities of life assurance policies is disclosed in
note 18 to the financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of, and
evaluated controls in place over the
underwriting of policies and claims
process and tested selected controls.

We obtained the actuarial valuation
reports from management and
assessed the competence,
independence and objectivity of
management'’s independent actuarial
experts.

We assessed the integrity of extracted
data by comparing data inputs used in
carrying the estimation of insurance
contract liabilities to data recorded in
the financial accounting systems.

With the support of our actuarial
experts, we evaluated whether the
Group’s actuarial methodologies and
assumptions were reasonable and
consistent with prior periods.

We evaluated the reasonableness of
assumptions applied in management'’s
projections by comparing with our own
expectations based on our industry
knowledge and the Group's historical
claims pattern.

We assessed reasonableness of
assumptions in respect of mortality and
morbidity, valuation interest rate,
update take-up rate, lapse rate,
investment return rate and expense
inflation rate by comparing to
independent sources.

We assessed the basis for renewal
expenses assumptions and ascertained
its reasonableness by comparing
percentage of renewal expenses to
actual data on gross premium and
expenses.

We checked the appropriateness of
relevant disclosures in the financial
statements.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC (continued)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
Corporate Information, Five-year Financial Summary, Report of the Directors, Shareholder
Information and Certificate of Solvency in respect of Life Business but does not include the
separate and consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’'s report, and the Chairman’s Review, Group Chief
Executive Officer's Review, Enterprise Insurance LTD Report, Enterprise Life Assurance LTD
Report, Enterprise Trustees LTD Report, Enterprise Properties LTD Report, Transitions
Report, Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Nigeria) Limited Report, Acacia Health Insurance Limited
Report, Corporate Governance Statement and Corporate Social Responsibility which are
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the separate and consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read The Chairman’'s Review, Group Chief Executive Officer's Review, Enterprise
Insurance LTD Report, Enterprise Life Assurance LTD Report, Enterprise Trustees LTD
Report, Enterprise Properties LTD Report, Transitions Report, Enterprise Life Assurance
Company (Nigeria) Limited Report, Acacia Health Insurance Limited Report, Corporate
Governance Statement and Corporate Social Responsibility, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992), and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate and consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Company and the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company and/or the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate and
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these separate and consolidated financial statements.

10



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the separate
and consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern;

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the separate and
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion;

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and have communicated with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

11



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC (continued)

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

The Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and
report on the following matters. We confirm that:

iy we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

ii} in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears
from our examination of those books; and

iii) the Group's statement of financial position and the Group's statement of comprehensive
income are in agreement with the books of account.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Richard
Ansong (ICAG/PI1534),

frasorrhousetoopes

PricewaterhouseCoopers (ICAG/F/2022/028)
Chartered Accountants

Accra, Ghana

7 April 2022

=

pwc
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ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC

Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

Assets

Deferred tax assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment properties
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment securities
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Deferred commission expense
Due from re-insurers

Due from related party
National fiscal stabilisation levy assets
Current tax assets

Cash and bank balances
Total assets

Equity

Stated capital

Deposit for shares

Retained earnings

Foreign currency translation reserve
Contingency reserve

Statutory reserve

Equity attributable to owners
Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Liabilities

Life fund

Deferred tax liabilities

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Policy holder retention scheme
Unearned premiums reserve
Outstanding claims

Trade and other payables
Deferred commission income
Due to re-insurers

Due to related parties

National fiscal stabilisation levy liabilities

Current tax liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The notes on pages 19 to 9o form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 13 to 90 were appwfth Board of Directors on 25

Group Chief Executive Officer

Note

23
9
8
6
7
11

25
12

13
14
26
27
28
15

17
17
17
17
17
17

10

18
23
40
24

19
20
21
29
14
26
27
28

The Company

As at 31 December
2021 2020
317,033 286,883
14,411 17,247
18,500 12,537
a7 -
- 366
131,832 139,977
22.075 91,944
513,888 488,954
258,886 258,886
204,667 182,072
463,553 440,958
463,553 440,958
13,703 13,993
12,032 9,403
21,933 21,933
_ 2,667 __ 2,667
_50,335 _ 47,996
513,888 488,954

|

The Group
As at 31 December
2021 2020
13,102 9,011
300,934 288,519
78,209 75:381
85 112
1,411,303 1,112,901
947 451
60,168 16,801
3,490 1,894
20,390 13,832
11,782 21,142
2,016 -
1,382 967
250,509 204,40
2,163,317 1,745,508
258,886 258,886
996 996
297,017 265,382
(9,734) (5,669)
87,873 65,745
— 9,201 — 5947
644,239 591,287
190,156 173,099
834.395 764,386
921,023 677,916
3,326 1,766
13,323 12,913
26,123 26,912
2,053 2,165
90,380 56,405
61,197 46,045
127,028 82,622
11,629 7,572
18,028 14,581
47,420 47,725
296 40
—_7.096 —_4.460
1,328,922 __ 981122
2,163,317 1,745,508

..............................................................

Fiifi Kwakye

Director
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ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC
Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

The Company The Group
Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
Investment income 29 69,163 54,149 249,172 136,496
Fair value gain on valuation of 3
investment properties - - 790 8,885
Investment expenses - - (4.947) _(3.719)
Net investment income 69,163 54,149 245,015 141,662
Gross insurance premium 34 - - 1,002,666 785,419
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers 34 - - (142,210) (117.628)
Net insurance premium 24 - - 860,456 667,791
Change in unearned premium - - (z1,759) (16,405)
Net insurance premium revenue - - 838.697 651,386
Other revenue 30 - - 66,696 48,024
Other income 31 1,492 104 13,685 6,675
1,492 104 80,381 54,699

Net income 70,655 54,253 1,164,003 847,747
Insurance benefits and claims 32 - - (402,563) (266,065)
Change in life fund liability 18 - - (241.,761) (108.565)
Net benefits and claims - - (644,324) (374,630)
Finance costs (2,133) (1,813) (3,694) (4,979)
Impairment charge (11,850) - (2,581) (5,670)
Operating expenses 33 (23,482) (26,614) (246,409) (190,846)
Commission expense 35 - S (146,966) (123,051)
Commission income 6 - - 32,951 _ 26,943
Net expenses (37,465) (28.427) (1.011,023) (672.233)
Profitbefore tax 33,190 25,826 153,070 175,514
National fiscal stabilisation levy 27 - - (7,328) (8,914)
Income tax expense 28 - (733) (22,890) (19.871)
Profit for the year 33,190 25,093 125 850 146,729
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Foreign operations - translation difference - - (2.812) 6.910
Total comprehensive income for
the year 33,190 25,093 120,040 129,819
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent 33,190 25,093 67,612 81,344
Non-controlling interest - - 55,240 65.385

33.190 25.003 122,852 146,720
Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the parent 33,100 25,003 63,547 73,849
Non-controlling interest - - 56.493 65,970

33.190 ~25.003 120,040 139,819
Earnings per share
Basic (GH¢ per share) 39 0.194 0.147 0.396 0.476
Diluted (GH ¢ per share) 39 0.194 0.147 0.396 0.476

The notes on pages 19 to 9o form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC

Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

The Company
Year ended 31 December 2021

Balance at 1 January 2021
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividend declared by the Company

Total Transactions with owners of the Company
Balance at 31 December 2021

Year ended 31 December 2020

Balance at 1 January 2020
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners of the company
Dividend declared by the Company

Total Transactions with owners of the company

Balance at 31 December 2020

The notes on pages 19 to 9o are an integral part of these financial statements
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Stated
Capital

258,886

Retained
earnings

182,072
23,190

33,190

I 10,505 I
! 10,595!
204,667

166,207
25,093

228

228

182,072

Total
Equity

(10.595)
(10.595)

228

228



ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC

Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2021

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid on lease liabilities
Interest paid on borrowings
Income tax paid

National fiscal stabilisation levy paid
Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Net acquisition of investment securities
Acquisition of investment property
Acquisition of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and
equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in acquisition of sharesin
subsidiary

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest
Dividends paid to equity shareholders
Repayment of loan principal

Principal lease payments

Tax on transfer to stated capital

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase /(decrease) in cash and bank
balances

Cash and bank balances at beginning of year
Effects of exchange rate movements on
translation of foreign operations

Cash and bank balances at end of year

Note

37
40
24
28
27

o Oy 0

44

21

24
40

15

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
61,304 13,829 464,447 286,868
(1,199) (1,254) (1,333) (1,213)
- - (1,626) (3,536)
- (79) (23,538) (16,336)
5 - (0.088) (9.753)
60.105 12,496 428,862 256,028
(5,359) (10,105) (261,647) (305,237)
= ¥ (316) (1)466}
(804) (828) (15,312) (12,464)
68 104 334 1,004
- - (84) (3)
(42.000) (122.483) (27.821) -
(48.,095) 1 12) (304.846) (318,166)
- - (50,534) (21,818)
(10,595) (9,228)  (10,595) (9,228)
& . (3,052) (17,630)
(1,284) (1,216) (1,675) (1,696)
- - (184) -
11,8 (10,444) (66,040) (50.372)
131 (131,260) 57,976 (112,510)
31,944 163,204 204,407 322,175
- - (2,874) (5.258)
32,075 31,944 259,509 204,407

The notes on pages 19 to 9o are an integral part of these financial statements
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ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC

Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES
1., Reporting entity

Enterprise Group Ple (the “Company”) is a public limited liability company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 2019 (Act 992) and domiciled in Ghana. The Company and its subsidiaries are registered to carry on the
business of investments, life and non-life insurance underwriting, pensions funds management, provision of
funeral services and real estate development and management. The registered office of the Company is
Advantage, Place Mayor, Road Ridge West Accra.

The separate and consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company standing
alone and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company is listed
on the Ghana Stock Exchange.

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Group in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

2.1.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and equity securities measured at fair value and the life fund and incurred but not reported claims
(IBNR) which are determined by an actuarial valuation.

The Group presents its statements of financial position broadly in order of liquidity, in an increasing order of
liquidity.

2.1.3 Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company and its subsidiaries will continue to
operate as a going concern.

2.1.4 New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and interpretations for the first time to financial reporting
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2021:

COVID-19-related Rent Concessions — Amendments to IFRS 16

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. Such concessions might
take a variety of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. In May 2020, the IASB made
an amendment to IFRS 16 Leases which provides lessees with an option to treat qualifying rent concessions in
the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for
the concessions as variable lease payments in the period in which they are granted.

Entities applying the practical expedients must disclose this fact, whether the expedient has been applied to all
qualifying rent concessions or, if not, information about the nature of the contracts to which it has been applied,
as well as the amount recognised in profit or loss arising from the rent concessions.

The amendments did not have any material impact on the results or financial position of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021,
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ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC
Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1.4 New and amended standards adopted by the Group (eontinued)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 — Amendments to IFRS 9, I1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16

In August 2020, the IASB made amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 to address the
issues that arise during the reform of an interest rate benchmark rate, including the replacement of one
benchmark with an alternative one.

The Phase 2 amendments provide the following reliefs:

When changing the basis for determining contractual cash flows for financial assets and liabilities (including
lease liabilities), the reliefs have the effect that the changes, that are necessary as a direct consequence of IBOR
reform and which are considered economically equivalent, will not result in an immediate gain or loss in the
income statement.

The hedge accounting reliefs will allow most IAS 39 or IFRS 9 hedge relationships that are directly affected by
IBOR reform to continue. However, additional ineffectiveness might need to be recorded.

Affected entities need to disclose information about the nature and extent of risks arising from IBOR reform to
which the entity is exposed, how the entity manages those risks, and the entity’s progress in completing the
transition to alternative benchmark rates and how it is managing that transition.

Given the pervasive nature of IBOR-based contracts, the reliefs could affect companies in all industries.

The Group's exposure to LIBOR is limited to borrowing of GH¢26,122,500 (Note 24) which matures in June
2026. The borrowing references the 6-month LIBOR with final cessation date of June 2023. The Group will
commence negotiations for the transition to the alternative reference rate with the lender during the next
financial year.

2.1.5 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Group

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2021 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 as replacement for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. It requires a current
measurement model where estimates are remeasured in each reporting period. Contracts are measured using

the building blocks of:
e discounted probability-weighted cash flows;
e  an explicit risk adjustment; and

e  acontractual service margin (CSM) representing the unearned profit of the contract which is recognised as
revenue over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice between recognising changes in discount rates either in the statement of profit or
loss or directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how insurers account for their
financial assets under IFRS g.

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is permitted for the liability for the remaining coverage for
short duration contracts, which are often written by non-life insurers.

There is a modification of the general measurement model called the ‘variable fee approach’ for certain contracts
written by life insurers where policyholders share in the returns from underlying items. When applying the
variable fee approach, the entity’s share of the fair value changes of the underlying items is included in the CSM.
The results of insurers using this model are therefore likely to be less volatile than under the general model.
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ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC

Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES (continued)

e Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1.5 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Group (continued)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracets (continued)

The new rules will affect the financial statements and key performance indicators of all entities that issue
insurance contracts or investment contracts with discretionary participation features.

The Group has instituted an IFRS 17 project implementation plan under the supervision of the Executive
Committee, who coordinate the activities of senior finance, actuarial and information technology executives from
impacted business areas. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the Standard on its operations.

The Standard was originally effective 1 January 2021, but extended to 1 January 2023 by the IASB in March 2020.
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Amendments to IAS 1

The narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are classified
as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (e.g. the receipt of a
waver or a breach of covenant). The amendments also clarify what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’
of a liability.

The amendments could affect the classification of liabilities, particularly for entities that previously considered
management’s intentions to determine classification and for some liabilities that can be converted into equity.

They must be applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal requirements in IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

In May 2020, the IASB issued an Exposure Draft proposing to defer the effective date of the amendments to 1
January 2023.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use — Amendments to IAS 16

The amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E) prohibits an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of PP&E any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset
for its intended use. It also clarifies that an entity is ‘testing whether the asset is functioning properly’ when it
assesses the technical and physical performance of the asset. The financial performance of the asset is not relevant
to this assessment.

Entities must disclose separately the amounts of proceeds and costs relating to items produced that are not an
output of the entity’s ordinary activities.

This amendment is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 — 2020
The following improvements were finalised in May 2020:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — clarifies which fees should be included in the 10% test for derecognition of
financial liabilities.

IFRS 16 Leases — amendment of illustrative example 13 to remove the illustration of payments from the lessor
relating to leasehold improvements, to remove any confusion about the treatment of lease incentives.

These amendments and clarifications are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
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ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC
Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES (continued)

2, Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1.5 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the Group (continued)
Disclosure of Accounting Policies- Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

The TASB amended IAS 1 to require entities to disclose their material rather than their significant accounting
policies. The amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’ and explain how to identify
when accounting policy information is material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting policy
information does not need to be disclosed. If it is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting
information. To support this amendment, the IASB also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements to provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

These amendments and clarifications are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
Definition of Accounting Estimates— Amendments to IAS 8

The amendment to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors clarifies how
companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The
distinction is important, because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future transactions
and other future events, but changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events as well as the current period.

These amendments and clarifications are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments to
IAS 12

The amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes require entities to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. They will typically apply
to transactions such as leases of lessees and decommissioning obligations and will require the recognition of
additional deferred tax assets and liabilities.

The amendment should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented. In addition, entities should recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent that it is probable that
they can be utilised) and deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative period for all
deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with:

¢ right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and
o decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of
the cost of the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments is recognised in retained earnings, or another component
of equity, as appropriate. IAS 12 did not previously address how to account for the tax effects of on-balance sheet
leases and similar transactions and various approaches were considered acceptable. Some entities may have
already accounted for such transactions consistent with the new requirements. These entities will not be affected
by the amendments.

These amendments and clarifications are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
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ENTERPRISE GROUP P1LC
Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement and any pre-existing
equity interest in the subsidiary. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition by acquisition basis, either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:
e consideration transferred,
e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the Company’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with IFRS g either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re measured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. Consolidation ceases when control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.
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ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC

Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2  Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (continued)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.8.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint
control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements
In the separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost is

adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment.

24



ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC
Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Foreign Currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The separate and consolidated financial
statements are presented in Ghana cedi (GH¢), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in “other income/ expense” in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at exchange rates ruling at the dates of initial recognition.

Foreign operations

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised in
other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.4 Property and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property and equipment are measured at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost of an item of property and equipment includes its purchase price and any direct attributable costs. Cost
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing property and equipment at the time that cost is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an item of property and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

The Group uses the straight-line method in depreciating its assets. The depreciation method, residual values and
useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Building 2.5% - 4%
Motor vehicles 25%
Furniture and fittings 12.5% - 25%
Office equipment 20% - 25%
Land is not depreciated.

Derecognition

Property and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to flow
to the Group from either their use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are included in the income statement.

Capital work in progress

Property and equipment under construction is stated at initial cost and depreciated from the date the asset is
made available for use over its estimated useful life. Assets are transferred from capital work in progress to an
appropriate category of property and equipment when commissioned and ready for its intended use.

2.5 Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets comprise computer software licenses. Software acquired by the Group is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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2.5 Intangible assets (continued)

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on software is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits embodied

in the specific asset to which it relates and cost can be reliably measured. All other expenditure is expensed as
incurred.

Amortisation

Software is amortised on a straight-line basis and recognised in profit or loss over its estimated useful life,
from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software license for the current and
comparative periods is three years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to flow to
the Group from either their use or disposal.

2.6 Investment Property
Recognition and measurement

Property that is held for long term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment property also includes property that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Investment property under construction is
measured at fair value if the fair value is considered to be reliably determinable. Investment properties under
construction for which the fair value cannot be determined reliably, but for which the Group expects that the
fair value of the property will be reliably determinable when construction is completed, are measured at cost
lessi impairment until the fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed — whichever is
earlier.

Valuations are performed as of the financial position date by professional valuers who hold recognised and
relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the location and category of the investment
property being valued. These valuations form the basis for the carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which the
market has become less active continues to be measured at fair value. It may sometimes be difficult to
determine reliably the fair value of the investment property under construction.

In order to evaluate whether the fair value of an investment property under construction can be determined
reliably, management considers the following factors, among others:

e the provisions of the construction contract;

e the stage of completion;

s thelevel of reliability of cash inflows after completion;
¢ the development risk specific to the property;

e past experience with similar constructions; and

e status of construction permits.
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2.6 Investment Property (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an
investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The fair value of investment property does not reflect future capital expenditure that will improve or enhance
the property and does not reflect the related future benefits from this future expenditure other than those a
rational market participant would take into account when determining the value of the property. Changes in
fair values are recognised as a separate line item in profit or loss. Investment properties are derecognised when
they have been disposed.

Derecognition

Where the Group disposes of a property at fair value in an arm’s length transaction, the carrying value
immediately prior to the sale is adjusted to the transaction price, and the adjustment is recorded in profit or loss
within net gain from fair value adjustment on investment property.

Reclasstfication to property and equipment

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is reclassified as property and equipment. Its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting purposes. If an item of owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is treated in the same way as
a revaluation under IAS 16. Any resulting increase in the carrying amount of the property is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a previous impairment loss.

Dual-use property

Properties that are partly held to earn rentals and partly held for own-use activities such as administrative
purposes or supply of services are considered dual-use properties. This would result in the portion held for
rental being investment property and the other portion as property and equipment if these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease. Otherwise, the entire property is classified as
investment property only if an insignificant portion of the property is held for own-use activities. The Group
considers an own-use portion below 25% of the measure to be insignificant.

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases with rentals payable quarterly, semi-
annually or annually. Lease payments for some contracts include inflationary increases, but there are no other
variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate. Where considered necessary to reduce credit risk, the
Group may obtain bank guarantees for the term of the lease.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value at the end of the current leases, the Group
typically enters into new operating leases and therefore will not immediately realise any reduction in residual
value at the end of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values are reflected in the fair value of
the properties.
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2.7 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a

lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group acting as the lessee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;
e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;
the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability. Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The finance cost is presented as an operating activity in the statement of cash flows.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of- use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices branches and other premises under non-cancellable lease arrangements. Rental

contracts are typically made for fixed periods of six months to eight years but may have extension options as
described below.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of

similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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2,7 Leases (continued)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third-party financing was received; and

* makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low- value assets and
short-term leases. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a
purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the Group.
These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.

The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property and equipment’ and lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the statement of financial position.

The Group acting as the lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether the lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance
lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such as
whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment in the lease.
The Group further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross
investment in the lease.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised under "other revenue" in the statement of comprehensive
income.
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2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets (other than deferred tax assets, inventories, investment
property) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s earrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets or Cash Generating Units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value
in use is based on estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

The Group's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are used by more than one CGU. Corporate
assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and tested for impairment as part of the
impairment testing of the CGUs to which the corporate assets are allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of assets in the
CGUs on a pro rata basis. Impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

2.9 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets
() Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
(1) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from

the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.
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2.9 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and

the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in investment income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

e FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCL Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through QOCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses), and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such

investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable.

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments

carried at amortised cost. For debt investments, the Group applies the general approach to determine the ECL.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. There is no impairment on trade
receivables because the Group had no history of default and the directors did not identify any forward looking
information which could materially impact the payment profile of the Group’s customers.
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2.9 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Impairment (continued)

The Group has three types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss model:

e trade receivables for sales of goods and from the provision of services
s debtinvestments carried at amortised cost, and
s debtinvestments carried at FVOCL.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except in the following cases, for
which the amount recognised is 12-month ECL;

e debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

¢ other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) for which credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition.

The Group considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to
the globally understood definition 'investment grade'. The Group does not apply the low credit risk exemption to
any other financial instruments. The impairment identified on debt investments measured at amortised is
considered immaterial and has not been recognised in the financial statements.

12-month ECL are the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after reporting date. Financial instruments for which 12-months ECL are recognised are
referred to as 'Stage 1 financial instruments'. Financial instruments allocated to Stage 1 have not undergone a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and are not credit-impaired.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instruments or the maximum contractual period of exposure. Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL are
recognised but that are not credit-impaired are referred to as 'Stage 2 financial instruments'. Financial instruments
allocated to Stage 2 are those that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
are not credit-impaired.

Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL are recognised and that are credit-impaired are referred to as 'Stage 3
financial instruments'.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows;

e financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date : as the present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive);

o financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date : the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

When discounting cash flows, the discount rate used is the original effective interest rate or an approximation
thereof.
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Financial assets (continued)

(iv) Impairment (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The Group considers a financial asset to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk when the remaining
Lifetime PD at the reporting date has increased beyond a set threshold, compared to the residual Lifetime PD
expected at the reporting date when the exposure was first recognised. Other qualitative criteria are considered in
determining whether a financial asset has experienced a significant increase in credit risk.

A backstop is applied and the financial asset considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk if
the borrower is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets measured at amortised cost are credit-impaired
(referred to as 'Stage 3 financial assets'). A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
e breach of contract such as default or past-due event;
e the restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not otherwise consider;
e itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation;
o the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A backstop is applied and the financial asset considered to credit-impaired if the borrower is more than 9o days
past due on its contractual payments.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss
rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31 December
2021 or 1 January 2021 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified the GDP and the exchange
rate of the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts
the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.

Presentation of loss allowances in the financial statements

Loss allowances for ECL on financial assets measured at amortised cost are presented as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. Loss allowances for ECL are presented as a separate line item- 'impairment loss on
financial instruments'- in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Financial assets (continued)

Write-off

Financial assets are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-offs. This assessment is carried out at an individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised when cash is received and are included in 'impairment
loss on financial instruments' in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets that are fully written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilities
Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different, in which case, a new finaneial liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the differences between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash asset transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS Standards, or for gains and
losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as in the Group's trading activity.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 30 days and are therefore all classified as current. Trade
receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore they are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other receivables generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the Group. Interest may
be charged at commercial rates where the terms of repayment exceed six months. Collateral is not normally
obtained.
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2.11 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents per the statement of cash flow include cash on hand, bank balances held with banks and
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less fram the date of acquisition that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the management of its
short term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial
position.

2.13 Insurance contracts

Companies within the Group licensed to carry out insurance business undertake contracts to underwrite significant
insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contracts may
also transfer financial risk.

As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the
occurrence of an insured event that are at more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.

) Recognition and measurement

The Group’s insurance contracts are classified into life and non-life insurance contracts.
Non-life insurance contracts

Non-life insurance contracts are casualty and property insurance contracts. Casualty insurance contracts protect
the contract holder against the risk of causing harm to third parties as a result of their legitimate activities.
Damages covered include both contractual and non-contractual events.

The typical protection offered is designed for employers who become legally liable to pay compensation to injured
employees (employers’ liability) and for individual and business customers who become liable to pay compensation
to a third party for bodily harm or property damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the contract holder for damage suffered to their properties or for
the value of property lost. Contract holders who undertake commercial activities on their premises could also
receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business
activities (business interruption cover).

Gross non-life insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover
provided by contracts entered into during the reporting period. They are recognised on the date on which the policy
commences. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the reporting period for premiums receivable in respect
of business written in prior accounting periods,

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the
reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The proportion attributable to
subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

Non-Life insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses include all claims occurring during the year, whether
reported or not, related internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and
settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims
outstanding from previous years.

36



ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC
Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.13 Insurance contracts (continued)

(i) Recognition and measurement (continued)

Non-life insurance contracts (continued)

The Group does not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims other than for disability claims. Liabilities for unpaid
claims are estimated using the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Group and statistical
analyses for the claims incurred but not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost of more complex
claims that may be affected by external factors (such as court decisions).

Non-life insurance commission expenses are paid on new insurance policies accepted during the period and
renewals. Commission expense is recognised when incurred.

Contingency reserve is held for the full amount of contingency reserve for entities within the Group issuing non-life
insurance contracts in Ghana as required by the regulatory authority in Ghana. Transfers to and from the
contingency reserve are treated as appropriations of retained earnings.

Life Insurance contracts

Life insurance contracts insure events associated with human life (for example, death or survival) over a long
duration.

Premiums are recognised as revenue when they become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown
before deduction of commission.

The Group issues long term insurance contracts. These contracts insure events associated with human life (for
example, death). The Group’s life insurance contracts are divided into ‘individual life insurance contracts’ and
‘group life insurance contracts’. Group life insurance contracts are usually taken to cover a group of persons whiles
individual life contracts are taken to cover an individual.

Claims and other benefits are recorded as an expense when they are incurred. Gross benefits and claims for life
insurance contracts and for investment contracts include the cost of all claims arising during the year, including:
internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims; and
policyholder bonuses declared. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications received.
Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when due.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded when the premiums are
recognised. The liability is determined as the sum of the expected discounted value of the benefit payments and the
future administration expenses that are directly related to the contract, less the expected discounted value of the
theoretical premiums that would be required to meet the benefits and administration expenses based on the
valuation assumptions used.

The liability is actuarially determined based on assumptions as to mortality, persistency, maintenance expenses and
investment income that are established at the time the contract is issued. Premiums are recognised as revenue
when they become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.

Where insurance contracts have a single premium or a limited number of premium payments due over a
significantly shorter period than the period during which benefits are provided, the excess of the premiums payable
over the valuation premiums is deferred and recognised as income in line with the decrease of unexpired insurance
risk of the contracts in force or, for annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the amount of future benefits
expected to be paid.
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2.13 Insurance contracts (continued)

@) Reinsurance contracts held

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance assets
represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a
manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with the reinsurer’s policies
and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an indication of
impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of an
event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Group may not receive all outstanding
amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that
the Group will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of profit or loss. These
processes are described in Note 2.9.

Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income immediately at the
date of purchase and are not amortised.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders. Contracts entered
into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued
by the Group and that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance
contracts held.

Insurance contracts entered into by the Group under which the contract holder is another insurer (inwards

reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts. Contracts that do not meet these classifications are classified as
financial assets.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are
dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts
recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured
insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an expense
when due.

Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to the terms of
the relevant contract.

If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the
reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in profit or loss. The Group
gathers the objective evidence that a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process adopted for financial

assets held at amortised cost. The impairment loss is calculated following the same method used for these financial
assets.

(iii) Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at fair value of the consideration
received less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The carrying value of insurance receivables is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment
loss recorded in the statement of profit or loss. These processes are described in Note 2.9
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2.13 Insurance contracts (continued)

(iii))  Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Insurance receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criteria for financial assets, as described in Note
2.9, have been met.

Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell (usually damaged) property acquired in settling a claim (for
example, salvage). The Group may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for
example, subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for
claims, and salvage property is recognised in other assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the amount
that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the property.

(iv)  Life insurance liability valuation basis and methodology

Policy liabilities for insurance contracts are determined using actuarial valuation principles and are reflected in the
statement of financial position as “Life insurance contract liabilities” or “life fund”.

Liabilities are valued as the present value of future cash flows discounted at the rate of return assumed on the assets
backing the policyholder funds. Future cash flows are projected on a best estimate basis with an allowance for
compulsory margins. Best estimate assumptions are required for future: investment returns; expenses; persistency;
mortality and other factors that may impact on the financial position of the Group.

Demographic assumptions including mortality and persistency rates are derived directly from recent experience
and are adjusted for anticipated future trends. Investigations are performed at least annually.

Future expenses are projected on a per policy basis where the per policy expense is derived from actual renewal
expenses incurred during the last financial period. Renewal expenses are determined by removing acquisition costs
and non-recurring expenses from the total expenses and adding an allowance for future one off costs which is
derived from an analysis of historical one-off patterns.

For individual policies where benefits are linked to the return on an underlying investment portfolio, the liabilities
are taken as the market values of the underlying investments, built up from the investment allocations made from
the premiums paid, adjusted to allow for the discounted present value of the difference between expected future
expenses and expected future charges.

All deficits or surplus arising from the valuation of the Group’s life fund are recognised in profit or loss.

(v) Deferred commission expense and income

Commission expense and income that vary with and are related to securing insurance contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised. The deferred commission expense and income are subsequently amortised over
the terms of the policies as premium is earned or incurred.

2.14 Income tax

Income tax expense comprise current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or OCI.

The Group has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes do not meet the definition of income

taxes, and therefore has accounted for them under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
and has recognised the related expenses in 'other expenses'.
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2.14 Income tax (continued)

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year end and any
adjustments to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to
income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current
tax also included any tax arising from dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria
are met.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

e temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

e temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to control the

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and its probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future; and

e temporary differences arising on initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future
taxable profits are determined bases on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of
taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits,
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on business plans for individual
subsidiaries within the Group. Deferred tax are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they

reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date, and reflects uncertainty related to
income taxes, if there is any.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequence that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For this
purpose, the carrying amount of investment property measured at fair value is presumed to be recovered through
sale, and the Group has not rebutted this presumption. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and presented as stated capital. All shares are issued at no par value.
Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial
measurement of the equity instruments.
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2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group have a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2,17 Earnings per share (EPS)

The Group presents basic and diluted EPS data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit
or loss that is attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted - average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to employees.

2.18 Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value for services rendered. Revenue is recognised as set out below:

Premium income

The accounting policy in relation to revenue from insurance contracts is disclosed in Note 2.13.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. When the Group
provides incentives to its tenants, the cost of incentives is recognised over the lease term, on a straight-line basis, as

a reduction of rental income.

Revenue from investment property includes rental income, and service charges and management charges from
properties.

Service charges and management charges from investment properties

Service and management charges are recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. When
the Group is acting as an agent, the commission rather than gross income is recorded as revenue.

Sale of goods and rendering of services

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue when it has transferred control over a good or service to a customer.

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations
in contracts with customers and the related revenue recognition policies.
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2.18 Revenue (continued)

Sale of goods and rendering of services (continued)

Type of product or Nature and timing of the Revenue recognition policies.
service satisfaction of performance
obligations
Pension management fee Invoices for pension management fees | Revenue is recognised over time as the
are issued when service has been services are provided.
rendered. Payments are received 30  |If the services under a single
days after the invoice is raised and arrangement are rendered in different
revenue is recognised based on reporting periods, then the consideration

performance obligations being met.  |is allocated based on their relative stand-
alone selling prices.

Sale of caskets Customers obtain control of caskets  |Revenue is recognised when goods have
when the goods are delivered to and  |been delivered to the customers A

have been accepted at their premises. |receivable is recognised when the goods
Payments for the sale of caskets are are delivered as this is the point in time
received in advance. that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

Funeral services Invoices for funeral services are issued |Revenue is recognised over time as the
when service has been rendered. services are provided.

Payments are received in advance and |If the services under a single

revenue is recognised based on arrangement are rendered in different
performance obligations being met.  |reporting periods, then the consideration
is allocated based on their relative stand-
alone selling prices.

2,19 Operating expenses
Operating expenses include expenses claim handling costs, product development, training costs, and marketing
expenditure as well as all other non-commission related expenditure. Operating expenses are recognised when
incurred. Operating expenses also include staff related costs, auditors and directors remuneration and other
general administrative expense.

2.20 Commission expenses

Commission expenses are paid on new business accepted policies during the period and renewals. Commission
expenses are recognised when incurred.

2.21 Policy holder benefits

Policyholder benefit payments in respect of insurance contracts are shown gross of reinsurance recoveries and
recognised when claims are incurred.

2.22 Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the

amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided and
recognised as personnel expenses in profit or loss. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or reduction in future payments is available.

Soctal security contributions

The Group contributes to the defined contribution scheme (the Social Security Fund) on behalf of employees. The
Group operates the two-tier pension scheme. Contributions by the Group to the mandatory tier one and tier two
schemes are determined by law; currently the employer contributes 13% of employee's basic salary while employee
contributes 5.5%. Out of the total contribution of 18.5%, the Group remits 13.5% to Social Security and National
Insurance Trust towards the first- tier pension scheme and the remaining 5% to a privately managed scheme by
Enterprise Trustees Limited under the mandatory second tier.

Provident fund

The Group contributes 9% or 11% of an employee's basic salary into a provident fund depending on the staff level.
This is a defined contribution scheme under the management of an external fund manager appointed by the
Trustees.

2.23 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the first-
in, first-out principle. In the case of manufactured inventories, cost includes of raw materials and an appropriate
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

2.24 Segmentreporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses. It includes revenues and expenses relating to transactions with the Group’s Chief

Executive Officer (CEO) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Group’s CEO include items that are directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
3.1 Insurance risk

Insurance contracts issued by companies within the Group carrying out insurance business transfers insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the Group manages them.

(a) Management of non-life insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

The Group underwrites risks that individuals, corporate or other entities wish to transfer to an insurer. Such risks
may relate to property, accident, motor, liability, marine and other perils which may arise from an insured event. As
such the Group is exposed to uncertainty surrounding the timing, frequency and severity of claims under insurance
contracts. The principal risk is that the frequency and/or severity of claims are greater than expected.
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3.1  Insurance risk (continued)

(a) Management of non-life insurance risk (continued)

Insurance events are by their nature random and the actual size and number of events in any one year may vary
from those estimated and experienced in prior periods. The Group underwrites short term risks, that is, insurance
under which claims are typically settled within one year of the occurrence of the events giving rise to the claims.

The product features of insurance contracts that have a material effect on the amount, timing and uncertainty of
future cash flows arising from insurance contracts in the Group are described below;

1) Property

Provides indemnity for loss or damage to immovable and movable property caused by perils such as fire, lightning,
explosion, weather, water, earthquake and malicious damage. These contracts may also include business
interruption policies which insure the loss of profits incurred by a business as a result of loss or damage to the
insured property by these perils.

(i) Accident

Provides indemnity for loss of or damage to mainly movable property for losses caused by crime, certain accidental
damage such as damage to goods in transit or accidental damage to glass. Included under the accident classes are
legal liabilities an insured may incur as a result of accidental damage to third party property or accidental death or
injury to a third party caused by the insured.

Provides compensation arising out of the death, permanent or temporary total disability of the insured, the family
of the insured or the employees of a business. This cover is restricted to certain accidents and does not provide the
wider benefits available from the life assurance industry.

(iii)  Motor

Provides indemnity for loss of or damage to the insured motor vehicle. The cover is normally on an all risks basis
providing a wide scope of cover, however the insured may select restricted forms of cover such as fire and theft
only. Legal liabilities arising out of the use or ownership of the motor vehicle following an accident for damage to
third party property or death or injury to a third parties are also covered in this class.

(iv) Engineering

Provides indemnity for losses sustained through the use of machinery and equipment or the erection of
buildings and structures. Risks covered by this type of contract include machinery breakdown, business
interruption and loss or damage to plant and equipment.

(v) Marine

Provides indemnity for both cargo and hull classes of business. Cargo covers physical loss of or damage to cargo.
Hull covers accidental loss or damage to commercial vessels.
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)
3.1 Insurance risk (continued)

(b) Exposure to non-life insurance risk

The Group limits its exposure to insurance risk through setting clearly defined underwriting strategy and limits,
application of appropriate risk assessment techniques, and centralised management of reinsurance.

The Group’s underwriting strategy ensures diversification of insurance risk in terms of type and amount of risk
covered, geographical location and type of industry covered. The strategy also aims to develop a sufficiently large
population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome. The underwriting strategy is detailed in
underwriting authorities which set the limits for underwriters in terms of line size, class of business and industry to
enforce appropriate risk selection within the portfolio.

The underwriting mandates are applicable to both internal and external underwriters and partners. Ongoing review
and analysis of underwriting information enables the Group to monitor its risks and take timely corrective action.

The ability to adjust premiums allows the Group to mitigate the risk of underwriting losses by addressing adverse
loss ratios in terms of different classes of business and different portfolio or the risk of fraudulent claims is reduced

by internal controls embedded in claims-handling processes and specific techniques developed to proactively
detect fraudulent claims.

(1) Underwriting and reinsurance operating procedures

The underwriting mandates are applicable to both internal and external underwriters and partners. Ongoing
review and analysis of underwriting information enables the Group to monitor its risks and take timely corrective
action. The ability to adjust premiums allows the Group to mitigate the risk of underwriting losses by addressing
adverse loss ratios in terms of different classes of business and different portfolio or clients.

The main objective of the risk management outfit is to provide a policy framework that ensures that risk
assumption and risk retention practice is in line with prudent risk/reward parameters set by the Group.
Specifically, the department determines the risk retention policy of the Group, and this leads to the type and level of
reinsurance placed for the year. Facultative and treaty reinsurance are undertaken for the purposes of cost
efficiency, compliance with risk assumption criteria and security.

The objectives and responsibilities of the department are approved by the Board of Directors.

(it) Re insurance strategy

The Group obtains reinsurance cover to reduce risks from single events or accumulation of risk which could have a
significant impact on earnings for the current year or the Group’s capital. This cover is placed on the local and
international reinsurance market. The Group's insurance risk and return position is tested against a wide range of
reinsurance alternatives including viability of proportional and non-proportional alternatives.

(iii) Risk retention parameters

The Group is in the business of assuming that level of risk, which is deemed prudent in relation to the risk/reward
and the Group’s absolute capacity in terms of shareholders’ funds and reserves.

Predetermined criteria are observed at all times other than where specific written permission has been obtained
from the Board of Directors.

(iv)  Treaty and Facultative placing process

The treaty-placing process is the responsibility of the underwriting and reinsurance departments.
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)
3.1 Insurance risk (continued)

(c) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Insurance risks are unpredictable, and it is impossible to forecast with absolute certainty future claims payable
under existing insurance contracts. As such reasonable provisions are made to adequately cater for all
insurance obligations when they arise.

(i) Claims provision

The Group’s outstanding claims provision include notified claims as well as incurred but not yet reported claims,

and due to the short-term nature of the business, it is not considered necessary to discount any of the claims
provision.

(i1) Notified claims

Claims provisions are based on previous claims experience, knowledge of events, terms and conditions of the
relevant policies and interpretation of circumstances. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate case by case
basis with regard to the specific circumstances, information available from the insured and the loss adjuster
and past experience of similar claims. The Group employs staff experienced in claims handling and rigorously
applies standardised policies and procedures around claims assessment. In addition, the Group utilises the
services of specialised administrators to perform the claims assessment process for some of itsbusiness.

The ultimate cost of the reported claims may vary as a result of future developments or better information
becoming available about the current circumstances. Estimates are reviewed regularly and updated if new
information becomes available.

(1) Claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Group, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims
may not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims.

(iv) Unsettled claims

In estimating the lability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers any information
available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in
previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case by case basis or projected separately in order to allow for
the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

(d) Limiting exposure to insurance risk

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the
right not to renew individual policies, it can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of
fraudulent claims. Insurance contracts also entitles the Group to pursue third parties for the payment of some
or all cost.

The following table discloses the concentration of insurance liabilities by the maximum insured loss limit
included in the terms of the policy. The amounts are the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (gross
and net of reinsurance) arising from insurancecontracts.
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)
3.1 Insurance risk (continued)

) Limiting exposure to insurance risk (continied)

Maximum insured loss

Product Type 2021 2020
Motor Gross 168,418 132,325
Net 161,218 124,418
Fire Gross 74,581 60,054
Net 13,235 10,118
Marine Gross 14,784 11,563
Net 2,860 1,881
General Accident Gross 50,531 33,462
Net 24,230 18,0923
Engineering Gross 26,780 20,527
Net 1,645 607
Aviation Gross 76 1,755
Net 63 22
Total Gross 335,170 250,686
Net 203,451 155,979

Management of life insurance risk

The risk under any one life insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of a life insurance contract, this risk is
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of life insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and
provisioning, the principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual elaims and
benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the
frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random, and the
actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the level established using
statistical techniques. The assumptions used in the insurance contracts are disclosed in Note 5.1.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be
affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group has developed its insurance underwriting
strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a
sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome. The concentration of
life insurance risk before and after reinsurance by class in relation to the type of insurance risk acceptable in
summarised in the following table which discloses the concentration of insurance liabilities by the maximum
insured loss limit included in the terms of the policy. The amounts are the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities (gross of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts.
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

3.1 Insurance risk (continued)

Management of life insurance risk (continued)

Assured Education Plan
Assured Lifetime Needs Plan
Assured Funeral Plan
Assured Family Income Plan
Assured Lady Care

Group Life Plan

Credit Risk Plan

Micro Ensure Plan

Special Market Group Plan

Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors. Estimated inflation is also a significant
factor due to the long period typically required to settle these cases. The Group manages these risks through

2021

Amount
249,155
182,068

179,078
24,428
728
18,458
43,894
2,276
4.275
705,260

% of total
premium

35%
26%
25%
3%
0%
3%
6%
0%
1%

2020

Amount
177,910
120,178
144,894

14,504
877
13,992
50,383
2,528
2,581
527.847

its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive claims handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type
and amount of risk, and industry. The amount and timing of claims within the Group are typically settled

within a year.
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33.7%
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2.7%
0.2%
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

3.2 Finanecial risk
Overview of financial risk management

The Group is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, reinsurance assets and
insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long term its investment proceeds are
not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts.

The most important components of this financial risk are market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. These risks arise from open positions in
interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements. The risks that the Group primarily faces due to the nature of its investments and liabilities are
interest rate risk and equity price risk.

The Group manages financial risks via the Board Investment Committee (“BIC™) which is mandated to
achieve long term investment returns in excess of the Group’s obligations under insurance contracts. The
principal technique of the BIC is to match assets to the liabilities arising from insurance contracts by
reference to the type of benefits payable to contract holders.

3.2.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign
exchange rates will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. These
risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity produects, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements. The risks that the Group primarily faces due to the nature of its
investments and liabilities are interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective of market risk

management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the United States dollars, the Pound Sterling, the Euro and the Naira. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities.

Foreign currency changes are monitored by the Board Investment Committee and holdings are adjusted
when there is a deviation from the Group’s investment policy. The Company's and the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk based on notional amounts at the year-end was as follows:

The Group

USD GBP EUR NGN
At 31 December 2021 GHS’c00 GHS’000 GHS’c00 GHS’000
Financial assets:
Bank balances 7,324 120 151 153,230
Due from reinsurers 1,435 53 70 -
Investment securities - - - 3,844,108
Trade and other receivables . s _ = - 2,731,001
Total financial assets 8,759 73 221 7,728.339
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings (5,113) - - -
Due to reinsurers (2,224) (191) (27) -
Lease liabilities (8o4) = = (27,519)
Other payables L : . (9.,014)
Total financial liabilities (8,141) (191) (27) _(36.533)

Net exposure

:
:
:

7.691,806
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

2.2 Financial risk (continued)
3.2.1 Market risk(continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Group

At 31 December 2020

Financial assets:

Bank balances

Due from reinsurers
Investment securities
Trade and other receivables

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings

Due to reinsurers

Lease liabilities

Other payables

Total financial liabilities

Net exposure

The Company

Financial assets:
Bank balances

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Lease liabilities
Other payables

Total financial liabilities

Net exposure

USD1
GBP1
EUR1
NGN 1

50

Usb

(4,515)
(1,099)
(1,824)

(7.438)

2021

UsSDh

1,373

(1,118)

GBP EUR NGN

156 199 181,566

7T 95 "

- - 3,118,115

& - 4,006,004

233 294  7,305.685

(145) (20) -

= £ (30,984)

- - (11,250)

(145) (20) _(42.234)

83 274 2,263,451
2020

GBP UsDh GBP

R 5,791 ___ 156

£ 5,791 156

3412 =

3.412 -

o

Average rate

2021

6.0250
8.3994
7.1978

69.94

2020

5.8267
7.1816
6.4159
67.6216

(23790  __156

Year-end rate

2021 2020
6.4500 5.9600
8.8023 8.1795
7.3989 7.3904

70.84 69.0627
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)
3.2 Financial risk (continued)

3.2.1 Market risk(continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table shows the effect of a strengthening or weakening of the foreign currencies against the GH¢
on the Company and Group’s profit or loss. This sensitivity analysis indicates the potential impact on profit
or loss based on foreign currency exposures at 31 December. It does not represent actual or future gains or
losses. The sensitivity analysis is based on the percentage difference between the highest daily exchange rate
and the average exchange rate per currency recorded in the course of the respective financial year.

Sensitivity analysis — currency risk

At 31 December, if the Ghana cedi had strengthened or weakened against the foreign currencies with all
variables held constant, the impact would have been asfollows:

The Group
2021 2020
% Impact Impact % Impact Impact
Change Profit or loss Equity change Profit or loss Equity
USD +2% +21 +16 +2% £19 +14
EUR +2% +40 +37 +9% +40 +30
GBP +2% +18 +14 +2% +14 +11
NGN +2% +2,590 +1,943 +2% +2,103 +1,577
Company
2021 2020
% Impact Impact % Impact Impact
Profit or : .
Change s Equity change Profit or loss Equity
USD +2% +19 +14 +9% +116 +87
GBP +2% - - +2% - -

Interest rate risk

Fixed interest rate financial instruments carried at fair value expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group’s fixed interest rate financial instruments are government securities and deposits with financial

institutions. The Group regularly monitors financing options available to ensure optimum interest rates are
obtained.

The interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date, is as
follows:

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Variable-rate instruments
Borrowings - = 26,123 (26,912)
- —— 26,123 (26,012)

51



ENTERPRISE GROUP PLC

Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis unless otherwise stated)

3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

3.2 Financial risk (continued)

3.2.1 Market risk(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis — interest rate risk

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased

(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, particularly foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

2021 2020
The Group Impact Impact
Profit or loss Equity Profit or loss Equity
Variable -rate instruments
Borrowings +131 +98 +135 +101

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments in quoted shares classified as fair
value through profit or loss. The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk
arising from investments in equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio.

Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with limits set by the Group. All listed investments held
by the Group are traded on the Ghana Stock Exchange (GSE).

Sensitivity analysis —Equity price risk

At 31 December 2021, the Group and Company had listed equity security amounting to GH¢ 112 million and
GH¢ 2.4 million respectively. If there was a 50 basis points increase or increase in share prices of the Group
and Company's listed equity instruments with all other variables held constant, the impact on profit or loss
and equity would have been an increase or decrease of GH ¢ 5.7million and GH¢120,084 after tax respectively
(2020: GH¢ 285,000 and GH¢6,750).
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK {continued)
3.2 Financial risk (continued)
2.2.2 Creditrisk

Management of credit risk

Credit risk arises from the inability or unwillingness of counterparty to a financial instrument to discharge its
contractual obligations.

The Group is exposed to credit risk in respect of the following:

Receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements;
Due from related party

Cash and bank balances

Debt investment securities; and

e Trade and other receivables

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group structures the levels of credit risk it
accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single counterparty, or groups of counterparty, and to industry
segments. Such risks are subject to an annual or more frequent review. Limits on the level of credit risk by
category are approved periodically by the Board of Directors.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Group’s liability as
primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Group remains liable for the payment
to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their
financial strength prior to finalisation of any contract. The Group does not have a concentration of credit risk
in respect of reinsurance as it deals with variety of reinsurers.

The exposure to individual counterparties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the right of offset
where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Group. Management information reported to the
Group includes details of provisions for impairment on trade and other receivables and subsequent write
offs. Internal Audit makes regular reviews to assess the degree of compliance with the procedures on credit.
The Group is not exposed to credit risk from its insurance contract holders because in accordance with the
regulator’s directive, an insurer can only underwrite insurance risk when the premium is settled.

Exposure to financial institutions concerning deposits and similar transactions is monitored against
approved limits. The Group manage credit risk associated with deposits with banks by transacting business
with financial institutions licensed by the central banks of the respective jurisdictions in which the entities
within the Group operate. Debt securities are instruments in the form of treasury bills and bonds issued by
the Government in the respective jurisdictions in which the entities within the Group operate.

Below is the analysis of the Company and Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at year end.

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Debt investment securities 16,097 10,738 1,295,269 1,036,787
Bank balances 32,051 31,925 259,247 204,356
Amount due from related party 121,832 139,977 - -
Due from reinsurers - - 11,782 21,142
Trade and other receivables** 37 - 59,174 16,000

180,017 182640 1625472 1,278,285

**Trade and other receivables excludes statutory receivables and deferred reinsurance expense.

None of the Company’s financial assets are neither past due nor impaired at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020. The Company does not hold any collateral security.
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

3.2 Financial risk (continued)

3.2.2 Credit risk (continued)

Management of credit risk

Except for due from reinsurers, matured investment receivable and receivable due from tenant none of the
Group’s financial assets are neither past due nor impaired at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020. The

Group does not hold any collateral security.

Below is the analysis of the Group's impairment on financial assets for 2021 and 2020.

Reinsurance Due from Matured Total
receivable tenants investment
receivable
31 December 2021
Impairment as at 1 January 1,005 60 10,000 11,065
(Release)/charge for year - (60) (10,000) (10,060)
Balance as at 31 December 1,005 - I _1,005
31 December 2020
Impairment as at 1 January 1,177 390 4,000 5,567
(Release)/charge for year - (330) 6,000 5,670
Write-off (172) . = B _(172)
Balance as at 31 December 1,005 _ 6o 10,000 11,065

Reinsurance receivable

Write-off of reinsurance receivables represents amount management has assessed as not collectible.

Matured investment receivable

The change in the impairment balance is as a result of changes in the expected cash flows used in determining the
recoverable amount as at 31 December 2021.
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)
3.2 Financial risk (continued)

3.2.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations when they fall due as a result of
policyholder benefit payments or cash requirements from contractual commitments. Such outflows would deplete
available cash resources for operational, trading and investments activities. In extreme circumstances, lack of
liquidity could result in reductions in the statement of financial position and sales of assets, or potentially an
inability to fulfil policyholder commitments. The risk that the Group will be unable to do so is inherent in all
insurance operations and can be affected by a range of institution specific and market wide events including,
but not limited to, credit events, systemic shocks and natural disasters.

The Group’s liquidity management process, is monitored by a separate team in finance, includes day to day
funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met, maintaining a
portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen
interruption to cash flow and monitoring the liquidity ratios of the statement of finaneial position against
internal and regulatory requirements. Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and
projections for the next month, as this is a key period for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial liabilities and the expected collection date of
the financial assets.

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Company for managing liquidity risk by remaining

contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows:

Contractual cash flows (undiscounted)

The Company
Carrying Up to One to Above Total
amount One year Five years Five years
31 December 2021
**Trade and other payables 12,032 12,032 - - 12,032
Due to related parties 21,933 21,933 . z 21,933
Lease liabilities 13,703 2,754 10,70 4,069 17.528
47,668 36,719 10,705 4,069 21,493
31 December 2020
**Trade and other payables 0,403 9,403 - - 9,403
Due to related parties 21,933 21,933 - = 21,933
Lease liabilities 13,993 2.545 12,437 3,759 18.741
45,320 33,881 12,437 3,759 50,077
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)
3.2 Financial risk (continued)

3.2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

) Above

Carrying Up to One to five
The Group amount one year five years years Total
31 December 2021
Borrowings 26,123 20,835 8,488 - 29,323
**Trade and other payables 82,351 82,351 - - 82,351
Due to re-insurers 18,028 18,028 - - 18,028
Due to related parties 47,420 47,420 - - 47,420
Lease liabilities 13,323 1,221 11,320 6,979 19,520

187,245 169.855 19,808 6,979 196,642
31 December 2020
Borrowings 26,912 21,808 8,540 - 30,438
**Trade and other payables 60,660 60,660 < = 60,660
Due to re-insurers 14,581 14,581 - - 14,581
Due to related parties 47,725 47,725 - - 47,725
Lease liabilities 12,913 1,973 10,147 5,705 17.825

162,791 146837 2 18687 5705 = 171,229

** This amount excludes deferred income and premium received in advance.

3.3 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
e To comply with the insurance capital requirements;

e To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

e To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance and investment contracts
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group is subject to insurance solvency regulations in all territories in which it issues insurance, and where it
has complied with all the local regulations. The Group has embedded in its framework the necessary monitoring
to ensure continuous and full compliance with such regulations.

The Insurance Act, 2021 (Act 1061) requires each insurance company to hold the minimum level of paid-up
capital of GH¢ 50million and to maintain a solvency margin of 150%. Capital adequacy and solvency margin are
monitored regularly by management employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the National
Insurance Commission for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the National Insurance
Commission on quarterly basis.
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3. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK (continued)

3.3 Capital management (continued)

The paid up capital and capital adequacy ratio of the Life insurance and Non-life insurance companies based in
Ghana was GH¢ 50 million and 371%, and GH¢ 50 million and 173% respectively as at the year end which was
above the minimum requirement. The Group generally complied with all externally imposed capital requirements,

The minimum required capital (presented in the table below for each of the entities within the Group) must be
maintained at all times throughout the year.

The table below summarises the minimum required capital and the regulatory capital held as at 31 December
2021. These figures are an aggregate number, being the sum of the statutory capital.

Minimum
regulatory
Nature of Regulatory capital
activity capital held requirement
General
Enterprise Insurance LTD Insurance GH¢ 50 million GHg¢ 50 million
Enterprise Life Assurance LTD Life Insurance GH¢ 50 million GH¢ 50 million
Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Gambia)
Limited Life Insurance GMDzo0 million GMD 20 million
Enterprise Trustees LTD Pensions GH¢ 7.4 million GH¢ 1 million
Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Nigeria)
Limited Life Insurance NGNS billion NGNS billion
Acacia Health Insurance Limited Health Insurance GH¢18.3million GH¢s million
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4. Accounting classifications and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities,
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets
and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair

value.

The Company

31 December 2021

Financial assets measured at
fair value:

Equity investment securities

Financial assets not measured
at fair value:

Debt investment securities
Due from related parties
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value:
Trade and other payables

Due to related parties
Lease liabilities

The Company

31 December 2020
Financial assets measured at fair
value;

Equity investment securities

Financial assets not measured at
fair value:

Debt investment securities
Due from related parties
Cash and bank balances

Finaneial liabilities not measured at
fair value:
Trade and other payables

Due to related parties
Lease liabilities

Amortised
cost

16,097
130,680
32,075

12,032
21,933
13,703

10,738
139,977
31,944
182,659

9,403
21,933
13.093

58

FVTPL

Total Level1 Levelz Level 3
2,403 2,400 3 =
16,097 > 15,604 .

130,680 - - 130,68¢
32,075 = < 32,075
178.852 —— 15.604 162,755

12,032 - = 12,032
21,933 - - 21,93¢
13,703 - - 13,70%
47,668 N ___- 47,668
1,796 1,796 3
10,738 = 10,494
139,977 z = 139,97
31,944 = = 31,94«
182,650 = = 10,494 171,92
9,403 - - 9,40,
21,933 = = 21,93.
45329 — — 45,32
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4. Accounting classifications and fair values (continued)

The Group
31 December 2021
Amortised
cost FVTPL Total Level1  Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured
at fair value:
Equity investment securities - 116,034 116,034 114,167 1,867 5
Financial assets not measured
at fair value:
Debt investment securities 1,295,269 - 1,295,269 - 1,268,327 -
Trade and other receivables 57,174 57,174 57,174
Due from re-insurers 11,782 11,782 11,782
Cash and bank balances 250,509 - 250,509 - - 259,509
1,623.734 - 1,623.734 - 1,268327 328465
Finanecial liabilities not
measured at fair value:
Trade and other payables 82,351 - 82,351 - - 82,351
Due to related parties 47,420 - 47,420 - ' 47,420
Due to re-insurers 18,028 - 18,028 - - 18,028
Lease liabilities 13,703 - 13,703 - - 13,703
Borrowings 26,123 i 26,123 - 27,184 -
187625 ___ - 187625 ___ - 27184 161,502
The Group
21 December 2020
Financial assets measured at
fair value:
Equity investment securities - 76,111 76,111 76,111 - - =
Financial assets not measured
at fair value:
Debt investment securities 1,036,787 - 1,036,787 - 1,023,085 -
Trade and other receivables 16,000 - 16,000 - - 16,000
Due from re-insurers 21,142 - 21,142 - - 21,142
Cash and bank balances 204,40 - 204,40 - - 204,407
1,278,336 - 1,278,336 - 1,023,085 241,549
Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value:
Borrowings 26,912 - 26,912 - - 26,912
Trade and other payables 60,660 - 60,660 - - 60,660
Due to re-insurers 14,581 - 14,581 - - 14,581
Due to related parties 47,725 - 47,725 = 2 47,725
Lease liabilities 12,913 - 12,913 = - 12,913
162,701 = 162,791 — == 162,791

Valuation techniques used is the discounted cash flow model. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation
techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates in estimating discount rates and annual coupon

payments to be received.
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5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below:

5.1 Assumptions and estimates of life insurance contract holder liabilities (life fund)

The liabilities relating to insurance contracts are measured in aecordance with the financial soundness
valuation basis. The basis uses best estimate assumptions regarding future experience together with
compulsory and discretionary margins for prudence and deferral of profit emergence. Assumptions used in

the valuation basis are reviewed periodically and any changes in estimates are reflected in the income
statement as they occur.

The process used to decide on best estimate assumptions is described below:
i)  Mortality

Individual non-profit business: Mortality assumptions are based on internal investigations into mortality
experience. Annual mortality investigations are carried out.

Allowance for worsening mortality as a result of AIDS has been made using a widely accepted AIDS and
demographic model, calibrated to reflect the contract holder population being modelled.

it) Morbidity
Morbidity and accident investigations are done annually.
iii) Persistency

Lapses and surrender assumptions are based on pricing and past experience. When appropriate, account is
also taken of expected future trends. Experience is analysed by product type as well as policy duration.

iv)} Expenses

The budgeted expense for 2021 is taken as an appropriate expense base. Provision for future renewal
expenses starts at a level consistent with the budgeted experience for the 2021 financial year and allows for
escalation at an assumed expense inflation. The allocation of total expenses between initial and renewal is
based on a functional cost analysis for both grouped and individual business.

v) Investment returns

Market-related information is used to derive assumptions in respect of investment returns, discount rates
used in calculating contract holder liabilities and renewal inflation.
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5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
5.1 Assumptions and estimates of life insurance contract holder liabilities (life fund)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table presents the sensitivity of the value of insurance liabilities disclosed in this note to
movements in the assumptions used in the estimation of insurance liabilities.

Variable Change in variable Impact on profit andloss
2021 2020
Worsening in mortality +1% p.a 1,872 192
Worsening of expense inflation +1% p.a 7,169 4,580
Worsening of lapse rate +10% 2,573 6,392

The above analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated

for example, change in interest rate and change in market values; and change in lapses and future
mortality.

5.2 The ultimate liability arising from claims made under non-life insurance contracts

There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the liability that the Group
will ultimately pay for such claims. The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements.

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract. Liability claims are settled over a period of time, and a
larger element of the claims provision relates to incurred but not reported claims (IBNR).

There are several variables that affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these contracts. These mainly
relate to the inherent risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract holders and the risk
management procedures they adopt. The compensation paid on these contracts is the monetary awards granted
for damages and bodily injury suffered by the insured.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it
is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability established. The liability for
these contracts comprises a provision for IBNR, a provision for reported claims not yet paid and a provision for
unexpired risks at the end of the reporting period. The amount of claims is particularly sensitive to the level of
court awards and to the development of legal precedent on matters of contract and tort. General insurance
contracts are also subject to the emergence of new types of latent claims, but no allowance is included for this at
the end of the reporting period.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Group’s estimation techniques
are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate
cost of insurance claims and insurance premiums earned in a particular financial year in relation to such
claims), and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using predetermined formulae where greater
weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Group, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR claims
may not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to the claims. For casualty
contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display greater variations between
initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree.
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5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

5.2 The ultimate liability arising from claims made under non-life insurance contracts
(continued)

In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers any information
available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous
periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio.

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections
given by the various methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most
appropriate estimation technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and
extent of development of each accident year.

5.3 Investment property
The valuation was determined by a professional independent valuer principally based on sales price of
comparable properties in close proximity and adjusted for size of the property. The inputs used in estimating

the value of the Group’s investment properties are not quoted on an active market and are classified under
level 3 fair value hierarchy classification. The inputs include:

Future rental cash inflow based on existing leases;

Discount factor reflecting current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of cash flows;

Estimated vacancy rates based on current and expected future market conditions after expiry of
any current lease
Expenses including necessary investments to maintain functionality of the

property for its expected useful life; and

Capitalisation rates based on returns expected to be generated from the property.
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6. Property and equipment

The Company

nded 31 De er 2021

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2021
Additions

Disposal

Balance at 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2021

Charge for the year

Disposal

Balance at 31 December 2021

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2020
Cost

Balance at 1 January 2020
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2020
Charge for the year

Disposals

Balance at 31 December 2020

Net book value

Motor
vehicles

4,974
643

r

2

: EEHM
=t — L
ek o

i e

4,869
603

1,678
1,163
(498)
2,343

2,631

63

Equipment,
fittings

and furniture

6,499
160

6

:

2,032
1,050

3,982

65274
205

6.499

1,899
1,033

2,032

Right-of-
use asset
(Building)

14,010
61

13,495
515

1,452
1,509

2.961

Total

25,483

8,236
3,700
(576)

11,360

14,411

24,638
1,343
_(498)

5,029
3,705
{498)
8.236

17,247
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6. Property and equipment (continued)

The Group

Cost
At 1 January 2021

Additions

Remeasurement
Disposals & write offs

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2021

Charge for the year

Disposal

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2021

Net book amount at 31
December 2021

Cost
At 1 January 2020

Additions
Disposals & write offs

Transfers

Transfer to investment
property

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020

Charge for the year
Disposal

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2020

Net book amount at 31
December 2020

Building
and
leasehold Motor
property vehicles
33,906 22,647
4,882 6,685
- (2,091)
- (86)
38.788 27,155
6,314 12,890
2,893 6,073
~ (1,876)
9,207 17.087
29,581 10,068
33,549 21,421
357 3,678
- (3,117)
- 666
- (1)
33,906 292.647
4,254 11,309
2,060 4,613
= (3,031)
.- i |
6,214 12,890
27,592 9.757

Equipment, Right-of-
furniture use asset
and fittings  (Building)
35,467 22,513
4,251 2,649
- (797)
(76) =
—(34) _(30)
39,608 24.335
18,202 7,076
4,119 3,443
(62) -
- 19
22.2 10,-53§
17,329 13,797
32,379 12,709
2,973 9,836
(68) =
182 -
1 (32)
35,467 22,519
13,515 3,487
4,769 3,592
(67) .
|5 _(3)
18,000 7,076

Capital
work-in-
progress Total
5,350 119,883
4,350 22,817
(797)
(2,230) (4,397)
(36) (186)
7:434 1 20
- 44,502
- 16,528
& (1,938)
= 19
= 59,111
Z:434 78,209
8,569 108,627
5,456 22,300
(39) (3,224)
(848) -
(7,675) (7,675)
! 113 1 i 145!
5.350 119,883
= 32,565
= 15,034
- (3,098)
o 1
= Lot 44,502
5,350 75.381

There was no indication of impairment of property and equipment held by the Group and the Company at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil). None of the property and equipment of the Group and the Company had been pledged
as security for liabilities and there were no restrictions on the title of any Group’s and the Company's property and
equipment at the reporting date and at the end of the previousyear.
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6. Property and equipment (continued)

Disposal of property and equipment

The Company
2021 2020
Cost 576 498
Accumulated depreciation (576) (498)
Carrying amount = =
Proceeds from disposal (68) (104)
(Profit)/loss on disposal (68) (104)

7. Intangible assets

The Group

Cost
Balance at 1 January

Additions
Exchange difference

Balance at 31 December

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 January

Charge for the year
Exchange difference

Balance at 31 December

Carrying amounts At 31 December
All intangible assets are externally acquired computer software.
8. Investment properties

The Group

Balance at 1 January
Subsequent expenditure
Transfer from property and equipment

Net gain on valuation of investment properties

- Change in fair value excluding exchange difference on valuation

- Exchange difference on valuation

Balance at 31 December

65

The Group
2021 2020
4,397 3,073
(1,938) (2.984)
2,459 89
(334) 1,00

2,125 —(915)
2021 2020
3,324 3,321
84 3

— 3 =
3.411 3.324
3,212 2,219
112 993
2 =
3,326 3.212
85 _112
2021 2020
288,519 270,493
11,625 1,466

- 7,675

790 8,885
(18,124) (2,441)
18,914 11,326
300,934 288,519
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8. Investment property (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties were derived by an independent valuer using the sales prices
of comparable properties in close proximity and adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size.
The most significant input into this valuation approach is rental income per square foot. As set out in note 5.3, the

basis for fair value estimation of investment properties is considered as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Investment property comprises a number of commercial properties that are leased to third parties. Each of the
lease contains an initial non-cancellable period of 1 year, with annual rents indexed to the exchange rates.
Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessee and historically the average renewal period is one year. No

contingent rents are charged.

The 'Advantage Place’ was used as security for a loan facility from Standard Chartered Bank Limited and there are
restrictions on the title of the Group’s investment property at the reporting date and at the end of the previous

year.

9. Investment in subsidiaries

During the year, Enterprise Group Plc acquired a new subsidiary known as Acacia Health Insurance Limited

(AHIL). AHIL was set up to manage health insurance schemes. It is 100% owned by Enterprise Group Ple.

Enterprise Insurance LTD

Enterprise Life Assurance LTD

Enterprise Trustees LTD

Enterprise Properties LTD

Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Nigeria) Limited

Acacia Health Insurance Limited

Name of subsidiary

Enterprise Insurance LTD

Enterprise Life Assurance LTD

Enterprise Trustees LTD

Enterprise Properties LTD

Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Nigeria) Limited

Acacia Health Insurance Limited

Country of in
corporation

Ghana
Ghana
Ghana
Ghana
Nigeria

Ghana

66

The Company
2021 2020
59,546 59,546
82,711 82,711
16,437 16,437
5,706 5,706
122,483 122,483
30.150 =
317.033 286,883
Percentage interest
held by the Company
2021 2020
75% 75%
60% 60%
80% 80%
70% 70%
100% 100%
100% -
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9. Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

The remaining shares for all the entities within the Group are held by Black Star Holdings Limited
(non-controlling interest).

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the
subsidiary undertakings held directly by the parent company do not differ from the proportion of ordinary
shares held. None of the subsidiaries issued preference shares during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:

Nil).

10. Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interest

2021 2020
Profit for the year 55,240 65,385
Foreign currency translation reserve _1.253 _(67)

56.493 65,218

The total non-controlling interest for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below:

2021 2020

Enterprise Assurance LTD 111,542 109,268

Enterprise Insurance LTD 39,221 31,556

Enterprise Trustees LTD 8,508 6,370

Enterprise Properties LTD _30,885 25.905

190,156 173,099

The summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to
the group before any intra group eliminations, are set out below.

Summarised statement of financial position

Enterprise Enterprise Life Enterprise
Insurance LTD Assurance LTD Properties LTD

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Current
Assets 338,714 49,638 1,182,508 151,137 16,698 10,085
Liabilities (196,711) (141,729)  (86,765)  (51,258) (27,143) (160,943)
Total current net (liabilities)/
assets 142,003 (92,091) 1,095,833 99,879  (10,445) (149,958)
Non-current
Assets 30,282 235,832 102,894 870,451 282,132 268,656
Liabilities (5.405) (17,518) (919,867) (697,159) (168,739) (32,349)
Total non-current net assets 14,877 218,314 (816,973) 173,292 113,393 236,307
Net assets 156,880 126,223 278,860 273,171 102,948 86,349
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10. Non-controlling interest (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Net insurance premium revenue
Rental income

Profit before income tax and national
fiscal stabilisation levy

Profit after income tax and national
fiscal stabilisation levy
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Summarised statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31
December

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

11. Investment securities

Investment securities

- Listed equity securities

- Unlisted equity securities
Total equity securities
Unlisted debt securities

Balance at 31 December

Enterprise Enterprise Life Enterprise
Insurance LTD Assurance LTD Properties LTD
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
203,451 139,574 607,233 511,812 - -
- = 1,152 1,356 16,463 13,940
50,243 32,373 97,729 146,372 17,988 7,311
35,601 22415 92,557 138,622 16,599 4,259
- - 3,132 1,463 - n
74,022 46,685 319,627 142,682 9,191 15,511
(48,415) (50,260) (269,027) (35961) (4,840) (621)
(7.370) (3.319) (102,487) (69.447) (4.678) 17,630
18,237 (6,794) (51,887) 37,274 (327) (2,740)
34,260 41,054 146,203 106,206 2,428 5,168
52,497 34,260 94,316 143,480 2,101 _2,428
The Company The Group

2021 2020 2021 2020

2,400 1,796 114,167 76,111

3 3 1.867 3

2,403 1,799 116,034 76,114

16,097 10,738 1,295,269 1,036,787
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11. Investment securities (eontinued)

The movement in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is summarised in the table below.

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Equity securities
Balance at 1 January 1,799 2,042 76,114 94,710
Purchases of equity securities - - 3,165 152
Net gains/(loss) on equity securities 604 (243) _326.755 (18,748)
Balance at 31 December 2,402 1,799 116.034 76,114

The components of financial assets at amortised cost is summarised in the table below:
Debt securities

Fixed deposits - - 23,832 65,993
Treasury bills 16,097 10,738 441,414 203,594
Bonds - - 830,023 667,200
Matured investment receivable - - - 20,000

16,097 10,738 1,295,206 1,046,787
Impairment of matured investment receivable - - = (10,000)
Balance at 31 December 16,097 10,738 1,295,269 1,036,787
Current 16,097 10,738 402,848 266,305
Non-current - - 892,421 770,482

16,097 10,738 1,295,269 1,036,787

12. Trade and other receivables

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Trade receivables - 10,233 7,452
Staff loans - - 106 3
Deferred reinsurance cost - - 994 891
Other receivables 37 - 48.835 8,545
Balance at 31 December 37 - 60,168 16,801

The maximum amount of staff loans during the year did not exceed GH¢323,854 (2020:GH¢3,000). All trade and
other receivables are current and their carrying values approximate their fair value.
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13. Deferred commission expense

The Group

2021
Balance at 1 January 13,832
Commission expense deferred 6,558
Balance at 31 December 20,390
14. Re-insurance assets and liabilities
The Group
Due from re-insurers 12,787
Impairment (1,0073)
Balance at 31 December 11,782

22,147
!LOOS[

21,142

Due from re-insurers are receivable within twelve months. The carrying value of amount due from reinsurers

approximates their fair value.
2021

Due to re-insurers 18,028

2020

14,581

Due to re-insurers are receivable within twelve months. The carrying value of amount due to reinsurers

approximates their fair value.

15. Cash and bank balances

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Cash on hand 24 19 262 51
Bank balances 32,051 21,025 250.247 204,356

16. Statutory deposit

In accordance with the Insurance Act, 2021 (Act 1061), Enterprise Life Assurance LTD and Enterprise
Insurance LTD are expected to have 10% of their minimum capital as statutory deposits which is not available

for use in day-to-day operations of the business.

In accordance with section 7 of the Insurance Act, 2005 (Act 724) of Gambia, Enterprise Life Assurance
Company Limited (Gambia) is expected to have GMD 300,000 as statutory deposits for each product the
Company has. The Company has three products. This statutory deposit is not available for use in day to day.
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16. Statutory deposit (continued)

In accordance with section 9 of the Insurance Act 2003, (Act 724) of Nigeria, Enterprise Life Assurance
Company (Nigeria) Limited is expected to have 50% of their minimum capital as statutory deposits which is
not available for use in day-to-day operations of the business.

The statutory deposits held as at 31 December for the various insurance entities is as below;

Currency 2021 2020
Enterprise Life Assurance LTD GH¢ 5,539 2,812
Enterprise Insurance LTD GH¢ 1,844 1,723
Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Gambia) Limited GMD 885 858
Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Nigeria) Limited NAIRA 4,000,000 4,000,000
Acacia Health Insurance Limited GH¢ 1,416 1,238

These amounts have been included in investment securities in the financial statements.

17. Capital and reserves
Stated capital

The authorised shares of the Company are 200,000,000 (2020: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of no-par
value. The issued ordinary shares at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 is as follows:

No. of shares Proceeds
2021 2020 2021 2020
‘co0 ‘000

Balance at 1January & 31 December 170,803 170803 258,886 258,886

There is no unpaid liability on any share and there are no calls or instalments unpaid. There are no treasury
shares. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

Deposits for shares

These represent additional capital contributed by Black Star Holding for additional shares of the Company. The
amount will be transferred to stated capital upon completion of the required formalities at the Registrar
General’s Department.

Retained earnings

The retained earnings account represents amounts available for distribution to the members of the Company
subject to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

Foreign currency translation reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve represents foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financial results of a foreign operation to the Group’s presentation currency. Movements in these reserves are
shown in the statements of changes in equity.
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17. Capital and reserves (continued)
Contingency reserves

Contingency reserves relates to funds sets aside on an annual basis as required by the respective Insurance
Acts of the companies operating in the insurance industries. Movements in the contingency reserve are shown
in the statement of changes in equity on pages 15 and 16 of these financial statements.

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves is in respect to Enterprise Trustee LTD as prescribed by section 15 of the Occupational and
Personal Pension Schemes (General) Regulations, 2011 (L.I. 1990). Transfers to and from this reserve are
calculated as 15% of profit after tax, and are treated as appropriations of retained earnings. Movements in the
statutory reserves are shown in the statement of changes in equity on pages 15 and 16 of these financial
statements.

18. Life Fund — Insurance Contract Liabilities

The Group

2021 2020
Balance at 1 January 677,016 569,252
Charge to income statement 241,761 108,565
Translation difference 1.246 fore)
Balance at 31 December 921.023 677,916

An independent actuary carried out the valuation of the Life Fund as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020,

19. Unearned premium reserve

The Group
2021 2020
Balance at 1 January 56,405 40,000
Assumed on Acacia purchase 12,216 =
Change in unearned premium reserve 21,759 16,405
Balance at 31 December 90,380 _56.405

Unearned premium represents the portion of non-life insurance contracts premium written in periods up to
the accounting date, which relate to the unexpired terms of policies in force at the reporting date.
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20. Outstanding claims

The Group
2021 2020
Balance at 1 January 46,045 36,014
Claims incurred 104,975 121,672
Claims paid (98,727)  (113,690)
Change in incurred but not reported provision 8.904 2,049
Balance at 31 December _61,197  _ 46,045
Outstanding claims is analysed as follows:
Gross outstanding claims 47,303 26,915
Reinsurance recoveries (20,392) (6,252)
Incurred but not reported provision 34,286 25,382
Balance at 31 December 61,197 _46,045

Outstanding claims are due within twelve months. The carrying value of outstanding claims approximates
their fair value.

Incurred but not reported provision

Balance at 1 January 25,382 23,333
Incurred but not reported provision _8.904 _2,049
Balance at 31 December 34,286 _25,382

An independent actuary carried out the valuation of the incurred but not reported provision as at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020.

21, Trade and other payables

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Accrued expenses and other payables 12,032 9,403 127,028 71,340
Dividend payable - - - 11,282
12,032 9,403 127,028 82,622

All trade and other payables are current and their carrying values approximate their fair value.

Dividend payable to Black Star Holdings

The Group

2021 2020
At 1 January 11,282 -
Amount declared during the year 39,252 33,100
Amount paid (50.534) (21,818)
At 31 December - = 11,282
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22, Deferred commission income

The Group
2021 2020
Balance at 1 January 7,572 7,700
Commission income released/(deferred) 4,057 128
Balance at 31 December 11,629 7,572
23. Deferred income tax
The Company The Group

2021 2020 2021 2020
At 1 January = (733) (7,245) (11,207)
Credited to profit or loss - 723 (2.531) 2,062
At 31 December - - (9,776) (7,245)

Deferred income taxes are calculated on temporary differences using the liability method and using a principal tax
rate of 25% (2020: 25%). Movement on deferred tax is shown below.

The Group
Charged/
(credit) to
At1 profit or At 31
Year ended 31 December 2021 January Loss December
Accelerated depreciation 170 (794) (624)
Other deductible temporary difference (7,415) (1,737) {9.152)
At 31 December (7,245) (2,531) (9,776)
Year ended 31 December 2020
Accelerated depreciation 279 (109) 170
Other deductible temporary difference (11.486) 4.071 (7.415)
At 31 December (11,207) 3.962 (7.245)

The above net deferred tax and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
The Group

2021 2020
Deferred tax assets (13,102) (9,011)
Deferred tax liabilities 3.326 1,766

(9.776) (2.245)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in the Group entities to the extent that the are taxable profits against
which they will be utilised. Deferred tax assets asset of GH¢ 15.3 million in respect of tax losses and temporary
differences on property and equipment have not been recognised for the Company because it is not probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom.
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24. Borrowings

The Group

2021 2020
Current 5,805 92
Non-current 20,318 26,820
26,123 26,012

Movement in borrowings is as follows;
Balance at 1 January 26,912 43,136
Interest expense 1,719 3,392
Interest paid (1,626) (3,536)
Principal repayments (3,052) (17,630)
Exchange loss _2.470 __ 1,550
Balance at 31 December 26,123 _26,912

In September 2021, the Enterprise Properties LTD refinanced its existing US$15 million loan and obtained a
medium-term facility of US$4.5 million from Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Plc. The loan is repayable in 10
semi-annual repayments commencing six months after the utilisation date under the facility. Interest payments is
on the last day of each interest period which is 6 months after first draw down. The interest rate applicable is the
aggregate of margin (6% per annum) and LIBOR. The facility is secured on the first ranking real estate mortgage
over the buildings, improvements and land interest comprised in Advantage Place. Seventh Avenue Properties
LTD and the Company are the first and second guarantors, respectively.

25, Inventories

2021 2020

Trading stocks 903 416
Consumables _44 a5
947 451

Trading stocks relate to caskets and other funeral ornaments. Consumables relate to materials used to prepare
units. During 2021, inventories of GH¢ 738,000 (2020: GH¢ 994,000) were recognised as an expense during
the period and included in 'operating expenses'.
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26. Related parties

The parent and ultimate parent company of Enterprise Group Ple (EGPLC) is Grace Strategic Ventures Limited
and Structured Capital Limited respectively. The parent and ultimate parent are both incorporated in Ghana.

The Company’s shareholding in the other subsidiaries making up the Group is disclosed in Note g.

Black Star Holding Limited is related to the Group through its common share holdings in Enterprise Life

Assurance LTD, Enterprise Insurance LTD, Enterprise Trustees LTD and Enterprise Properties LTD.
Databank Financial Services Limited is related to the Group through common ultimate shareholder.
i) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

The Company

Rental payments
Enterprise Properties LTD
Seventh Avenue Properties LTD

Shared service costs

Enterprise Insurance LTD

Enterprise Life Assurance LTD
Enterprise Properties LTD

Enterprise Trustees LTD

Enterprise Funeral Services Ghana LTD

The Company

Payments of expenses on behalf of:
Enterprise Properties LTD
Seventh Avenue Properties LTD

Dividend

Enterprise Life Assurance LTD
Enterprise Trustees LTD
Enterprise Insurance LTD

Capital injection

Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Nigeria) Limited

Working capital injection

Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Nigeria) Limited

The Group
Management fees
Databank

2021

727

4,318
7,218

459
1,700

2021

54,000
8,800

l

|l

2020

Q62

3,659
6,814

451
1,579

2020

15,149
2,463

46,703
6,400
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26. Related parties (continued)

@) Transactions with related parties (continued)
2021 2020
Dividend
Enterprise Life Assurance LTD to Black Star Holdings Limited 36,000 31,135
Enterprise Trustees LTD to Black Star Holdings Limited 2,200 1,600
Enterprise Insurance LTD to Black Star Holdings Limited _ 1,052 _1365
(i) Year end balances arising from transactions with the related parties
Amount due to related parties
The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Black Star Holdings Limited 21,933 21,933 47,420 46,739
Databank Financial Services Limited - - - Q86
Amount due from related parties
Enterprise Properties LTD 131,832 131,279 - -
Databank Financial Services Limited - - - -
Enterprise Life Assurance Company (Nigeria) Limited - 8,698 > 2

131,832 139,977 = -

The amounts due from and due to related parties are due within twelve months. The amount payable bear no
interest. The amount due from related parties was not impaired at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.
The amount due to and due from related parties are to be received or settled in cash.

Lease liabilities
The Company

2021 2020
Enterprise Properties LTD 3,631 3,716
Seventh Avenue Properties LTD 10,072 10,278

13,703 = 13,994

The lease liabilities for the Company emanates solely from non-cancellable lease arrangements with
Enterprise Properties LTD and Seventh Avenue Properties LTD for three (3) properties. The unpaid lease term
as at 31 December was 8 years. Lease payments are to be made bi-annually per the lease agreements.

Off balance sheet transactions
Enterprise Properties LTD obtained a long-term facility of US$4.5 million in September 2021 from Standard

Chartered Bank Limited to support the construction of an office complex ("Advantage Place"). Seventh Avenue
Properties LTD and Enterprise Group Ple are the first and second guarantors, respectively.
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26. Related parties (continued)

(ii) Year end balances arising from transactions with the related parties (continued)

Key management personnel

The Company The Group

2021 2020 2021 2020
Salaries and other employment benefits 13,758 12,275 29,284 28,456
Employer’s pension fund contribution 1,406 1,253 _3.621 _3.432

15,164, 13,528 32,905 31,888

The directors are the only key management personnel. The directors’ emoluments are disclosed in Note 33.

27, National Fiscal Stabilisation levy

Payments

The Group i Jsidii A Chx‘ge :g; during At
BRtaRy ¥y the year 31 December

Year of assessment
Up to 2020 40 - - 40
2021 - 7.328 088 (1,760)
—40 7,328 (0,088) (1,720)

Year of assessment
Up to 2019 881 - - 881
2020 - 8,914 (9,755) (841)
_881 8,914 (9.755) 40

The above net National Fiscal Stabilisation assets and liabilities is presented in the statement of financial
position as follows:

2021 2020
National Fiscal Stabilisation levy assets (2,016) 5
National Fiscal Stabilisation levy liabilities 296 40

(1,720) __40

In accordance with the National Fiscal Stabilisation Act, 2013 (862), some specified companies and
institutions including Insurance Companies are liable to pay a levy under the Act. The rate of the levy is 5% on
the profit before tax of these Companies. The Levy is not an allowable deduction for the purpose of
ascertaining the chargeable income.

28. Income tax
(i) Income tax expense
The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Current income tax - - 25,421 15,909
Deferred income tax expense (Note 23) - 733 (2.531) 3,962
— 733 22,890 19,871
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28. Income tax (continued)

(@) Income tax expense (continued)

The tax on the profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory income

tax rate applicable to profits as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax charged at enacted tax rate at 25% (2020:25%)

Income exempt from tax
Effect of tax rate in foreign jurisdiction
Non-deductible expenses

Derecognition of previously recognised deductible

temporary differences
Tax on dividend
Tax losses utilised

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
Derecognition of previously recognised tax losses
Tax losses for which deferred tax was not recognised

(i) Current tax (assets)/liabilities
The Company
Year ended 31 December 2021

Year of assessment
Up to 2020
2021

Year ended 31 December 2020
Year of assessment

Up to 2019
2020
The Group
Year ended 31 December 2021
At
1 January
Year of assessment
Up to 2020 3,493
2021 -
3:493

Charge for
the year

25.421
23.421

9

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
23,190 25.826 153.070 175,514
8,298 6,457 38,268 43,879
(16,256) (14,476)  (113,387) (134,885)
- 8 58
4,986 1,490 88,402 85,575
- 733 - 2,551
m z 521 397
" - - (448)
& - (1,472) (74)
» = 74 1,636
2.97 6,529 10,476 21,182
=t 733 _22,800 19.871
Charge for Payments At
the year during 31 December
the year
- - 2,667
E — 2,667
. - 2,746
PR _(79) _(79)
e B Py ) 2,667
Payments
during Translation At
the year difference 31 December
= = 3,493
(23.538) —(338) 2,221
(23,538) {338) 5.714
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28. Income tax (continued)

(i) Current tax (assets)/liabilities (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

Year of assessment

Up to 2019 3,942
2020 2

3.942

The above net current tax and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

The Group

Current tax assets
Current tax liabilities

29. Investment income

Fair value through profit or loss:
-Dividend income
-Net fair value gain/(loss) in equity securities

Dividend from subsidiaries
Interest on unlisted debt securities
Bank interest

30, Other revenue

The Group

Fee income from pension services
Funeral services income
Rental income on investment property

= 7 3,942
(16,336) (22) {449)
2021 2020
(1,382) (967)
_7.096 4.460
—a7i4 2403

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
114 28 6,629 4,991
604 (244) 36,755 (18,748)
66,507 54,197 8 -
644 104 193,936 136,680
_1,294 ___64 11,849 13,573
2021 2021
43,995 34,105
13,977 8,626
8.724 5,203
66,696 48,024

Fee income from pension services and funeral service income are recognised at a point in time while rental

income is recognised over time
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31. Other income

Exchange gains

Profit/(loss) on disposal of property and equipment (Note 6)

Sundry income

32, Insurance benefits and claims

The Group

Non-life insurance

Gross claims incurred

Reinsurance recoveries

Incurred but not reported provision

Life insurance

Policy surrenders, terminations and withdrawals
Funeral

Death claims

Individual life

Group benefits

Total insurance benefits and claims

33. Operating expenses

Directors’ emoluments

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation and amortisation

Staff costs

Other operating expenses

Shared service cost charged to subsidiaries

Staff costs include:

Salaries and other short-term employment benefit
Employer’s pension fund contribution

Other-long term employment benefits

The Company The Group

2021 2020 2021 2020
1,424 - 1,515 1,978
08 104 (2,125) 915
s = 14.295 2,782
1492 _104 13,685 6,675
2021 2020
135,086 121,380
(24,117) (54,245)
9,530 2,049
120,499 69,184
140,193 2,881
38,969 43,902
76,939 131,108
256,101 177,891
_25.963 18,900
282,064 196,881
402,563 266,065

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
8,762 6,351 11,658 10,582
125 109 925 826
3,700 3,705 16,640 16,027
16,203 16,563 108,598 89,440
8,575 11,651 108,588 73,971
(13.883) (11,765) - -
-23.482 26,614 246,409 190,846
14,166 14,191 97,927 77,000
1,384 1,044 8,509 8,293
653 1,328 2,163 4,147
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33- Operating expenses (continued)

Staff cost for executive directors are included in director's emoluments.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets arising from rental of properties for executive director amounting to
GH¢194,515 has been included in directors’ emoluments in 2021 and 2020 for the Company.

Shared service cost charged to subsidiaries represent the portion of management expenses incurred by Enterprise
Group Plc charged to the subsidiaries

The number of staff employed by the Company and the Group were as follows:

Staff numbers

34. Net insurance premium

The Group

Non-life insurance:
Motor

Fire

Marine

General Accident
Engineering

Aviation

Life insurance:
Individual life
Group life

Customer retention
scheme

2021

Gross Reinsurance

premium

168,418
74,581
14,784
50,531
26,780

76

335.170
552,777

116,817
669,594

(2,008)
667,496

ceded

(7,100)
(61,246)
(11,924)
(26,301)
(25,135)

_ (13)

(131,719)

(755)
(9.736)
(10,491)

10 i

(142.210)

82

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
28 30 431 424

2020

Net Gross Reinsurance Net
premium  premium ceded Premium
161,318 132,325 (7,907) 124,418
13,335 60,054  (49,936) 10,118
2,860 11,563 (9,682) 1,881
24,230 33,462  (14,539) 18,923
1,645 20,527  (19,920) 607
63 1,755 _(1.723) 32
203.451 250,686 (103,707) 155,979
552,022 454,250 (1,879) 452,371
107,081 73,506 (12.042) 61,554
659,103 527,846 (13,921) 513,925
(2,008) 211 - (2,113)
657,005 525,733 (13,921) 11.812
860,456 785419 (117628) 667791
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35. Commission expense

The Group

Commission expense
Commission expense deferred

36. Commission income
The Group

Commission income
Commission income deferred

37. Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operation
The Company
3021 2020
Profit before tax 33,190 25,826
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 33) 3,700 3,705
‘Write off of capital work-in-progress (Note 6) * =
Finance costs 2,133 1,813
Fair value gains on investment properties " =
Fair value (gains)/losses on investment securities (Note 11) (604) 243
Exchange loss on borrowings (Note 24) - -
Impairment charge 11,850 -
(Profit)/loss on sale of property and equipment (Note 6) (68) (104)
Changes in:
Changes in life fund - =
Unearned premium e S
Outstanding claims . &
Deferred commission income - -
Amount due from re-insurers = =
Inventories - -
Trade and other receivables (37) 2,410
Prepayments 366 8g
Deferred commission expense = x
Amount due to related parties - =
Amount due from related parties 8,145 (23,283)
Policy holder retention scheme - =
Trade and other payables 2,629 3,130
Amount due to re-insurers = =
Cash generated from operations 61,304 13,829

83

2021 2020
153,524 126,782
(6.558) (3.731)
146,966 123,051
27,008 26,815
(4,057) 128
32,951 26,943
The Group
2021 2020
153,070 175,514
16,640 16,027
» 39
3,694 4,979
(790) (8,885)
(36,755) 18,748
2,170 1,550
11,850 5,670
2,125 (915)
243,107 108,565
33,975 16,405
15,152 10,254
4,057 (128)
9,360 (4,645)
(496) (35)
(43,276)  (62,082)
(1,596) (2,863)
(6,558) (3,730)
(305) 5,291
(112) (135)
55,688 5,858
3.447 1,386
464,447 286,868
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38. Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that
are used to make strategic decisions. All operating segments meet the definition of reportable segments under
IFRS 8. The Group is organised into seven operating segments. These segments are Non-life insurance business;
Life assurance business; Health insurance; Pension administration; Real estate; Funeral services and
Investments.

84



8

]91°0% (£8L7) o8 1857 g%t ot S6t ot er gte'b
Sz6°gett  (89T'0fl) (AT G661 zgg'Ser 156‘01 166'g2 Poo'ibe grr'zIe
LTEE0TE (0zb'o1Y) 2g9g9°c1s £96'c1 0ER'gbeT gotcs 690%F9 to6'L9ET 966‘g9t
zig‘car (r9r'lZ9) 061°CE L9€C o9bCr ol¥zy 1209 z61°C6 €10tz
(06g‘Te) - - 6) (99¢1) (th1s) (L68T) (6v%) (ger‘er)
(get'L) - - - - - - (r1g‘P) (P15'2)
0Z0°€St  (191°Z9) 061°6E 9.L8°C 9ag‘Pr 1I9°61 816°L GSo‘oor €C9‘gt
(bgl6zz) SPOT (egL'61) (0LL79) (o¥z'6) (60L°91) (ZEgTT) (825°66) (g¥6°09)
(of9‘gr) 665t (004E) (r19'n) (F1€) (F68'1) (88%) (€2c2‘6) (601%)
(185°@) - (0Sg‘1I) - - - - 6956 =
(F69°€) 180°‘g (Etr'e) (TL1°1) (6141) (oor1'n) - (r00‘€) (109°g)
(S1o'P1T) - - - - - - (§So°Fh) (09&‘61)
(E9Sgob) - - - - - (rrg‘ee) (t9o‘sge) (88998)
(1941t3) - - - - - - (1941¥e) -
ceo‘bor‘t (9Eg‘0R) CCo‘ol gz6‘br 660°‘gz i1e°6E PC6°ES |I9‘12g8 I9E'QTS
Q56 (083'Y) 959G b 6ITT [ ]98T 09r1'S [k
. (L05‘99) LoS‘99 - - - . = -
- (Poo’g) . - poo‘g 2 . - .
969'99 = - 891 Sot'gr 69E°€E 8LO‘T zS1r -
Tli‘6be - g6t - erv 998°‘C £56‘C ger‘gos Gzl
£L69°gER (Sto‘m) - - & SSo‘gl E81609 FoS'hgr
Te10 ], ﬂﬁmﬂﬁﬁmﬂ.—m—m— STUIUNSIAU] QDUEQ s ajeliss ﬂﬂﬁﬂbﬁm—nmﬁhﬁﬁ F0VUR.INSUY 3JoueInsse IoJUBRINSUI
.—.ﬂh@ﬂ.—.—ﬁm esy UoISuag -H—anm UHE U.“.mﬂuﬂ.ﬂz

(PonuIue?) UONBULIOKUI JUsWSas

juawdinba

pue Ay1adoxd jo uonismboy
SInINIqel] 1101,

sjosse [210],

Xe] I93Je 1goid

asuadxo xe} swrodU]

£A9T UOLESIIGRIS [eDSL] [BUOHEN
XB] 2109 1J01

sasuadxe SuneiedQ

uorjesnIowe pue uonensida(
S]oSSe [eIOUBUY

uo (a81eyo) /osea[aa Jusuaredu]
81500 doueUL]

asuadxa UOISSIWIUIOD I8N

SUITR[d pUE S1JaUaq SdUBINSU]
punj Sy1[ ut 98ueyD

2UI0oUI 12N

SI9130 -

QuUIoour Hmﬂu.u @ﬁﬁ uﬂmﬂﬁum@fﬁm BN
paiepaa

QUIOOUT IDYIO PIe JUIUIISIAUT 1N
sanIed paje[al - ANUIASI 1310
SI9UI0}STID

[BUI=]X0 - anUaAL HQJHO

[BUIIXD - UIOOUT 1SDIDIUT

[BUI91Xa - poudes winturaid JoN

-wm

(po1B1S 9SIMIAYI0 SSA[UN SIPI? BUBYL) JO SPUBSNOY] Ul 81E SJUNOWE [[Y)

(ponunuod) SHLON

I20T I12quIa03(] 1€ popus Ieax

SIUDUIRIE]S [RIOURUL] Pajepijosuo) pue ajeredos

J1d dN1OUD HSTAJAHILNA



98

tober 00% felade] 6GL £92 £9S QEr'g €691
TEI'IRO (9LL'168) 966%L¥ ott'Ee SLP'6PE 9zZ6TT Cig‘ogl Lbz'651
g0G'GrLT (Lot'969) re6‘ggh ofo'bt A o i LLL'ER FArAC 0LF'Sge
6zliobt (1rLeS) £60Gz (+g6) 0gz'P zle'St geeer Siv‘es
(128'61) (g18‘1) (£84) - (250°E) (PLPS) (5SF) (6€€°Q)
(F16'8) - - - - - (S62°L) (619°T)
#1564t (E6g°6F) 9Tg'Se (g6) Fef 4 47 oFiioT tEr‘obr ELE 2
(TT2‘GLT) PGEE (Po1‘€2) (z¥g‘9) (Go1°6) (0S6'F1) (956‘S4) (gte'gh)
(S€9GT) PHEE (015°E) (gse‘e) (681) (Eot'e) (o9¥9) (6o01't)
(049'G) - - - 0oge - (o00‘9) -
(6£6'F) Fos‘s (B1g'1) (292'T) (26£€) (£96) (S9t'2) (gge‘z)
(got1‘96) 191 - 258 - - (€50°5g) (goo‘zT)
(S90°993) - - - = = (188°967) (Pg1°69)
(S95'gor) = - - - - (S95‘goT) =
LPLLYR (956'c9) €S PS 989'g 81961 ©90‘6¢ tgliocy 09£'gor
£LS9°TT - (gr) - V426 a7 (9991) 959
- (Geb19) L61%S - (965°€) - teg =
- (restr) - - €oo‘or - |15 -
teo‘gh - - 929‘g L86°E Sor've 95ET E
089°981 ot - - 915'F 0€6'g901 0E1'Ss
9gerSg - - - - - TIgTIS L5681
SIDIAIIS UONEIISIUIMIPR  JJUBINSSE aouBInsSul
[E10], uoneuluryy SJUSUIISIAUL  [eIoUNY alelse [esy uorsuag AT AJI[-uoN

juawdmbs pue Auedoead jo uoismboy

SenI[Iqel] [B10],

519558 [BJ0L,

Xe} Jo)e 1yoid

11paJo/(esuadxe) Xe) auoou]

AAT UOTIBSI[IQEIS [BOSLI [BUOLEN

¥e} 210Jq (ss0[)/1g0ig

gasuadxo SunessdQ

uoleziIoue pue uonenaidad

s)as58

[eouRUY Uo (3818YD) /osea(el jusuireduw]
1502 20URULY

asuadxa UOISSIUIUIOD 19N

SWITR[D PUE S}aUaq 9dURINSUL

puny oy i a8uey)

auwI0dul 19N

SI9L}0 - JWOIUI I=2Yj0 pue JUUISSAUL JON

Pole[ad - SUIODUL JAY0 PUE JUSULISIAUL JON

sanaed paje[al - INUIAIL 131D
SI2UI0ISNI [BUIS)XS - SNUIASI 1010
[BULIS]X2 - UIOJUT 1821011

[euIalxe - paures winiwead JaN

(ponunued) voneurioyul juowigeg °gE

(Pa18]S 9SLMIAYIO SSI[UN SIPSD BUEYS) JO SPUBSNOY] Ul 1€ SJUNOWE [[V)

(ponunuod) SHLON

1202 JqUIad3(J TC PIpUD Ieax

SJUAWIdLE]S [P URUL] PajepI[osuo) pur deredas

I1d dNOED HSTAJHALNE
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Year ended 31 December 2021

NOTES (continued)
(All amounts are in thousands of Ghana cedis unless otherwise stated)

38. Segment information (continued)
Geographic Information
The geographic information analyses the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by the Company’s country of

domicile. In presenting the geographic information below, segment revenue is based on the geographic location of
customers and segment assets are based on the geographic location of the assets.

2021 2020
Country of domicile Ghana The Gambia Nigeria Ghana The Gambia Nigeria
External revenues 989,685 11,028 1,953 563,189 8,219 -
Non-current assets 103,774 20,731 18,123 421,524 471 6,852

*Includes property and equipment, intangible assets and investment property. These amounts are before
consolidation adjustments

No single external customer accounts for 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
Company segment information

The segment information for the Company is the same as that represented under "Investments" segment for
the Group operating segments disclosure.

39. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company 33,190 25,003 67,612 81,344
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 170,803 170,803 170,803 170,893
Basic earnings per share 0.194 0.147 0©0.396 0.476

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. There are no potential dilutive ordinary shares.
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40. Leases

Leases as lessee

The Group leases a number of branches and office premises. The leases typically run for a period between two (2)
to ten (10) years, with an option to renew the lease after the date. For some leases, payments are renegotiated
every five (5) years to reflect market rentals. Some leases provide for additional rent payments that are based on

changes in local price indices.

The Group also leases kiosk with contract terms of one to three years which are classified as low-value leases. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

Information about leases for which the Group and Company is a lessee is presented below.
i. Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets relate to leased branch and office premises that are presented within property and equipment.

The Company The Group
2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance at 1 January 11,0490 12,043 15,437 9,222
Additions 61 515 1,707 9,836
Depreciation charge for the year (1,487) (1,509) (3,661) (3,592)
Translation difference - - (19) (29)
Balance at 31 December _9,623 1,049 13.464 _15.437
ii. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Interest on lease liabilities 1,199 1,254 1,333 1,224
Exchange loss on lease liabilities 934 559 643 363
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,487 1,509 2,190 3,487
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets - 12 211 12
iii. Amounts recognised in statement ofcash flows
Interest on lease liabilities 1,199 1,254 1,333 1,213
Exchange loss on lease liabilities 934 1,216 643 1,696

. Extension options

Some leases of office premises contain extension options exercisable by the group up to one year before the end of
the non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable, the Group seeks to include extension options in new
leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by
the lessors. The Group assesses at lease commencement due date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is
significant event or significant changes in circumstances within its control.

The Group has estimated that the potential future lease payments, should it exercise the extension options, would

result in an increase in lease liability of GH¢ 7.2million and GH¢ 2.94million (GH¢6.5 million and GH¢ 3.2
million) for the Group and Company respectively.
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40. Leases (continued)

Leases as lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities
The Company The Group

2021 2020 2021 2020
Balance at 1 January 13,993 14,135 12,013 7,219
Additions - 1,707 2,977
Modifications - 515 (135) 4,049
Remeasurements 61 - (136) -
Interest expense 1,199 1,254 1,333 1,224
Interest payment (1,199) (1254) (1,333)  (1,219)
Lease payments (1,284) (1,216) (1,675) (1,696)
Foreign currency transactional loss 933 559 643 363
Translation difference - - 6 (10)
Balance at 31 December 13,703 13,993 13.323 12,913

The Company’s lease arrangements that resulted in the lease liabilities recognised are with its subsidiaries i.e
Enterprise Properties LTD and Seventh Avenue Properties LTD. The breakdown of lease liability due to each
subsidiary has been disclosed in Note 26.

See Note 3 for maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Leases as lessor

Operating lease

The Group leases out its investment property. The Group has classified these leases as operatingleases, because
they do not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets. Note 8
sets out information about the operating leases of investment property.

Rental income recognised by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 was GH¢ 8.7million (2020:
GH¢ 5.3million).

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to
be received after the reporting date.

41. Contingencies

There are certain lawsuits and claims pending against the Group which are being handled by external legal
counsels. The contingent liabilities in respect of pending litigation and claims amounted to GH¢ 1,063,617

(2020: GH¢ 1,244,447) as at 31 December 2021. In the opinion of the directors, the Group's liabilities are not
likely to be material.

There are no pending litigations against the Company as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.
42. Capital Commitments
There were no capital commitments for the Group and Company at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

43. Off balance sheet transactions

Enterprise Properties LTD obtained a long-term facility of US$4.5 million in September 2021 from Standard
Chartered Bank Limited to support the construction of an office complex ("Advantage Place"). Seventh Avenue
Properties LTD and Enterprise Group Plc are the first and second guarantors, respectively.
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44. Business Combination

Under a definitive sale and purchase agreement dated 15th June 2021, the shareholders of Acacia Health

Insurance Limited sold all 18,343,621 issued ordinary shares to Enterprise Group Plc for cash consideration of
GH¢ 42 million.

The fair value of assets and liabilities assumed as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

Assets

Cash and balances with banks 14,179
Investment securities 23,515
Investment property 11,310
Property and equipment 4,856
Deferred tax assets 169
Insurance receivables 7,711
Other assets 6,522
Total assets 68,262
Liabilities

Insurance payables 8,745
IBNR provision 654
Unearned premiums 26,066
Current tax payable 1,174
Other liabilities 1,473
Total liabilities 38,112
Net identifiable assets acquired 30,150
Goodwill 11,850
Net assets acquired 42,000

The goodwill was fully impaired at acquisition.

45. Dividend per share
Dividend proposed

The directors recommend the payment of dividend of GH¢ 0.074 per share for amounting to GH¢ 12.6 million
(GH¢ 0.062 per share for amounting to GH¢ 10.6 million).

46. Subsequent events

The directors are of the opinion that there are no post balance sheet events which could have had material effect
on the statement of financial position of the Group at 31 December 2021 and on the profit for the year ended on
that date which have not been adequately provided for or disclosed.
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(1) Directors’ shareholding at 31 December 2021

Name

GADZEKPO, KELI
ESSON-BENJAMIN MARTIN
TYSON, MICHAEL

Number of shares
67,500

4,110

500

Category Number of shareholdings Total holding % Holding
10001 and Over 1,728 431,479 0.36
1-1000 1,000 2,576,764 1.52
1001 - 5000 350 2,475,026 1.47
5001 - 10000 517 165,409,556 06.65
3,595 170,892,825 _100
(iii) List of top twenty (20) shareholders as at 31 December 2021
SHAREHOLDER NO. OF SHARES % HOLDINGS
GRACE STRATEGIC VENTURES LIMITED 75,395,586 44.12
STD NOMS/TRUST ACCNT/CS SEC(US) LLC/AFR OPT FD 16,978,801 9.94
L.P
CLEARTIDE ASSET HOLDINGS LTD, 13,300,878 7.78
SOCIAL SECURITY AND NATIONAL INSURANCE TRUST 8,292,318 4.85
VENTURES AND ACQUISITIONS LIMITED 7,820,700 4.58
SCGN/'EPACK INVESTMENT 4,001,055 2.34
MAXWELL, JANET SNOWDEN 2,967,500 1.74
ZBGC/CEDAR PROVIDENT FUND-ICAM, 2,278,871 1.33
SCGN / NORTHERN TRUST CO. AVFC 6314B 2,075,032 1.21
ZBGC/CEDAR PENSION SCHEME-ICAM, 2,014,400 1.18
STD NOMS/TRUST ACCNT/CS SEC(US) LLC/AFR OPT CAY 1,405,645 0.88
ZBGC/AXIS PENSION PLAN, 1,183,419 0.69
OTENG-GYASI, ANTHONY 1,000,500 0.59
SCGN/DATABANK BALANCED FUND LIMITED 916,005 0.54
BADER, LARS ERNEST L.B.E 799,532 0.47
METLIFE CLASSIC A/C, STD NOMS TVL PTY/METLIFE 657,115 0.38
GOLD PLAN FUND MICAC
ESTATE OF DR. P.K ANIM-ADDO, 625,000 0.37
EGH/ECG PENSION SCHEME TIER 3 PORT 1 624,632 0.37
DODOO, FRANCIS F.D 593,845 0.35
GES OCC PENSION - DATABANK FINANCIAL SERVICES 514,286 0.30
OTHERS 27,357,615 16.01
GRAND TOTAL 170,892,825 400
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Certificate of Solvency in Respect of Life Business

I, G. T. Waugh certify that the liabilities in respect of life policies of Enterprise Life Assurance LTD for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 do not exceed the amount of the life assurance fund as shown in the
balance sheet.

The Company was financially sound on the statutory basis as at the valuation date, and in my opinion is likely to
remain financially sound for the foreseeable future.

Embedded Value Analysis
Embedded Value (EV)

Margins in the reserving basis mean the net asset value of an insurance company does not necessarily provide a
good indication of the company’s value. The Embedded Value (EV) is intended to address this problem by placing
a value on these margins. The EV is equal to:

e the adjusted net worth of the Company.
e plus the value of future profits from in-force business.
e less the cost of required capital.

The Net Asset Value (NAV) is defined as the excess value of all assets attributed to the business not
required to back the liabilities,

The value of future profits from in-force business (VIF) is determined by projecting profits on the best estimate
basis without margins, and discounting the results at the risk discount rate. The value derived is therefore the
economic value of the margins in the reserves. A similar calculation is performed to determine the value of new
business at the point of sale (VINB).

For the VIF and the VNB allowance is made for the cost of required capital (CoC). This represents the difference
between the required capital and the discounted value of interest on the amount and the releases on an annual
basis. The required capital has been set equal to the anticipated regulatory minimum capital when draft
legislation is enacted.

The Embedded Value includes the value from business written up to the current date but does not take into
account the value of future new business. An investor is likely to ascribe value to that future new business. While
volumes and mix of business will vary in future years, a reference point for the value of future business is the
value of business sold during the year which is shown in the results below.

Embedded Value Results

The embedded value has decreased by GH¢43.9 million over the past year to date, as shown in the
table below:

2021 2020

GHc¢’000 GH¢’o00
Net Asset Value 284,700 281,890
Value of in-force business 479,300 527,320
Cost of Capital (32,724) (33.997)
Embedded Value 731,276 775,213
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Embedded Value Analysis (continued)

Embedded Value Earnings

The embedded value earnings are shown in the table below

2021 2020

GHd¢’'o00 GHd¢ 000

Change in EV (excluding dividends) (43,963) 96,931
Dividends paid 90,000 75,000
Restatement of prior year NAV (15.527) 17.437
Embedded Value Earnings 320,510 180,368

Analysis of Embedded Value Earnings

The analysis of embedded value earnings provides explanations and insights as to how and why the NAV and the
VIF have changed over the reporting period. It also provides a check that the business is performing in line with
expectations. A summary of the analysis is shown in the table below:

VIF COC NAV EV

GH¢’000 GH¢’oo0 GH¢'000 GHe¢’o00

Roll forward to year end 101,052 (7,284) 36,867 130,635
Transfers to net worth (128,254) - 128,254 -
VNB 77,043 5,077) (1,840) 70,126
Experience profits 13,009 (7,022) (29,588) (23,600)
Actuarial basis changes (120,883) 20,656 (46,397) (146,623)

(58,033)  _1273  _87,206  _30,538

Key Assumptions

The assumptions are set based on estimates of future experience. These are derived from analyses of past
experience for mortality, persistency and expenses. Allowance is made for future investment return at 15.0% p.a.
(2020: 15.0% p.a.) and inflation at 10% p.a. (2020: 10% p.a.). The risk discount rate is 20% p.a. (2020: 20% p.a.).

Al

G T Waugh MA FASSA
Statutory Actuary
25 March 2022
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